Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

HYLETE, Inc.
11622 El Camino Real, Suite 100
San Diego, CA 92130
www.hylete.com

Up to $1,699,999.72 in Series B-2A Preferred Stock at $0.29
Minimum Target Amount: $9,999.78

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: HYLETE, Inc.

Address: 11622 El Camino Real, Suite 100, San Diego, CA 92130
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: March 26, 2012

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,999.78 | 34,482 shares of Series B-2A Preferred Stock
Offering Maximum: $1,699,999.72 | 5,862,068 shares of Series B-2A Preferred Stock
Type of Security Offered: Series B-2A Preferred Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $0.29

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $499.96

Amount-Based Investment Incentives

Tier 1| $499+
Invest $499+ and receive 30% off all regularly priced products for life.
Tier 2 | $1,000+

Invest $1,000+ and receive 50% off all regularly priced products, an additional 10% off
clearance items, and free shipping for the 1st year, and then 30% off for life thereafter.

Tier 3 |$2,500+

Invest $2,500+ and receive 50% off all regularly priced products for life, an additional
10% off clearance items, and free shipping.

Tier 4 | $5,000+

Invest $5,000+ and receive $500 store credit™*, plus 50% off regularly priced products
for life, an additional 10% off clearance items, and free shipping.

*HYLETE also reserves the right to adjust pricing of HYLETE products and/or
discounts to investors at any time without further notice.

**All perks occur when investment in company becomes final.

g 500 store credit will expire one vear from issue date.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

HYLETE, Inc. is engaged in the design, development, manufacturing, and distribution



of premium performance apparel and gear. We are a community-driven brand focused
on people living a fitness lifestyle, and we constantly strive to push the limits of what
we can do to strengthen and support the fitness community. We offer a suite of
product offerings consisting of premium performance apparel, footwear, and gear for
men and women who live a fitness-based lifestyle, including items such as shorts,
pants, tops and jackets, socks, shoes, and other accessories designed for functional
fitness and other athletic pursuits. We sell our products at multiple price levels and
design our products with unique and/or innovative features which we believe
differentiates our products from those of our competitors and doubles as gear for an
active lifestyle. To date, all our products have been sold direct to consumers through
our website (www.hylete.com) and through third-party e-commerce retailers and
other businesses that order in bulk with our corporate branding added to our products.
In 2022, we plan to expand into additional third-party e-commerce retailers as well as
select brick and mortar storefronts in the United States and abroad.

HYLETE, LLC was organized under the laws of the State of California on March 26,
2012. In January 2015, HYLETE, LLC was converted to a California corporation named
HYLETE, Inc. The Company was reincorporated in Delaware in January 2019.

HYLETE owns several trademarks and two patents. Its Garment Waist Assembly (US
Patent Number 9,149,081) includes a waistband that defines inner openings and outer
openings in the front of the waistband assembly on opposing sides of the front
centerline of the garment providing access to the drawstring channel from the inner
side and the outer side of the waist assembly, respectively. There are multiple wearing
options, including the drawstring exposed or hidden, and the waistband flipped with
the drawstring exposed.

The second patent is Garment Having a Drawstring Closure Assembly (US Patent
Number 10,299,524) which involves a closing and tightening system for the waistband
of the garment. More specifically, two drawstrings fed through four grommets. When
both strings are pulled tight, both sides of the garment are pulled towards each other
and are secured on top of each other when tied down. The strings are woven through
the grommets to allow the garment to be tightened on both sides, creating a secure
attachment suited to use on athletic wear.

It also owns several trademarks. The first trademark is the HYLETE name (IC 025) and
is trademarked in the US, Australia, Canada, China, European Union, Iceland, Korea,
Mexico, Norway, Russia, and Singapore. Other trademarks include the current HYLETE
logo (IC 025), the previous HYLETE medallion logo (IC 025), and the GracedByGrit
name (IC 041), which is under license from GracedByGrit Foundation, Inc.

Competitors and Industry

The Total Available Market (TAM) for Sports & Fitness Clothing in the U.S. is
estimated at $63 Billion in the year 2021.

The Total Serviceable Market (SAM) for premium athletic apparel in the U.S. is
estimated at $12.6 Billion in 2021.



We compete with other major activewear and athletic apparel brands such as Nike,
Rhone, UnderArmour, Fabletics, Reebok, Adidas, Lululemon, Vuori, Ten Thousand,
BYLT, Nobull, and Rhone. Our product quality, strong brand appeal, and community-
based marketing approach are our primary competitive advantages over the large,
multichannel athletic brands.

We believe our marketing is a critical element in maximizing our brand value to our
consumers. Our in-house marketing department conceives and produces omnichannel
marketing initiatives aimed to increase brand awareness, positive perception and
drive engagement and conversion. We utilize a multi-pronged marketing strategy to
connect with our customers and drive traffic to our online platform.

Current Stage and Roadmap

CURRENT STAGE

HYLETE specializes in the design, development, and distribution of premium
performance apparel, direct to consumers through its own website, affiliate marketing
partners, and select third-party retailers. HYLETE has been operating for ten years and
has recently pivoted from being digitally native to pursuing an omnichannel strategy.

HYLETE has been in business for 10 years and has established itself as a premium
plaver in the fitness apparel space. We have been recognized as premium due to the
performance characteristics of our products, including their fit, fabric, and
functionality. Over the course of the past 10 vears, we have also cultivated a large base
of loyal customers, a great team of employees, and a significant infrastructure that
sets us up for future growth.

FUTURE ROADMAP

The plan for the future is to take all of these great attributes and utilize them to drive
significant growth. Up until now, the vast majority of our sales have taken place on
hylete.com. This was done deliberately as we viewed ourselves as a digitally native
brand that wanted to sell on our own site. Going forward, we will be making an
aggressive shift to an omnichannel strategy. By adding physical retail, international
distribution, co-branding, and outside marketplaces, we will be able to create
significant new revenue streams for the company. With all the other pieces in place
(product, people, customers, and infrastructure), we are confident in our ability to
make this growth plan a reality.

The Team
Officers and Directors

Name: Adam Colton
Adam Colton's current primary role is with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:



e Position: Chief Executive Officer
Dates of Service: August 15, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Expanding the company, driving profitability, and managing
the overall operations of the company. Adam has an annual salary of $200,000
and no equity compensation.

® Position: Director
Dates of Service: July 12, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: CEO Director of the Board

¢ Position: Chief Financial Officer
Dates of Service: November 15, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Adam's responsibilities were consistent with those typically
associated with the CFO role

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: HYLETE, Inc.
Title: Chief Operating Officer
Dates of Service: January 01, 2020 - August 25, 2021
Responsibilities: Operating

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: National Cardiac Inc
Title: Chief Financial Officer
Dates of Service: April 16, 2017 - September 30, 2019
Responsibilities: Adam's responsibilities were typical of those associated with
the CFO role

Name: Scott Kennerly
Scott Kennerly's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: VP of Technology
Dates of Service: January 01, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: Technology and Operations. Scott has an annual salary of
$175,000 and no equity compensation.

Name: Andy Gilkison

Andy Gilkison's current primary role is with the Issuer.



Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: VP of Sales
Dates of Service: January 01, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Sales. Andy has an annual salary of $175,000 and no equity
compensation.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Legendary Headwear
Title: Sr. Director Sales & Marketing
Dates of Service: July 01, 2020 - January 01, 2022
Responsibilities: Sales and Marketing

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Tharanco Group
Title: Tourney Golf
Dates of Service: June 01, 2017 - June 01, 2020
Responsibilities: Manage global sales, product line, distribution, forecasting and
P &L with a focus on green grass customers and key online partners.

Other business experience in the past three years:

o Employer: 18Red Brand
Title: Founder
Dates of Service: January 01, 2010 - Present
Responsibilities: Lifestyle brand founder

Name: Kurt Hanson

Kurt Hanson's current primary role is with Black Oak Capital. Kurt Hanson currently
services 1-2 hours per week on average hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: February 11, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the Board of Directors. Kurt does not receive a
salary or equity compensation for his role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

o Emplover: Black Oak Capital
Title: Managing Partner



Dates of Service: January 01, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: General Management of the Debt and Equity Funds managed by
Black Oak Capital

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Cornerstone Wealth Management
Title: Director of Business Development
Dates of Service: January 01, 2018 - December 31, 2021
Responsibilities: Business Development

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: University of Nevada - Las Vegas
Title: Adjunct Professor
Dates of Service: January 01, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Adjunct Professor of Strategic Management and Policy

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Kurokazan
Title: Independent Business Consultant
Dates of Service: January 01, 2018 - January 01, 2022
Responsibilities: Consulting

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or “Company”)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the Series B-
2a Preferred Shares should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources
are sufficient to enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each

i¥



investor in the Company should consider all of the information provided to such
potential investor regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in
addition to the other information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk
factors are not intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the
commercial and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it’s a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaving for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any Series B-2a Preferred Stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is
subject to SEC limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you
purchase cannot be resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you
are transferring the stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of
an offering registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created
for the benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment, there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one, As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the fitness industry. However, that may never happen or it may
happen at a price that results in yvou losing money on this investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company is offering Series B-2a Preferred Shares in the amount of up to
$1,700,000 in this offering and may close on any investments that are made. Even if
the maximum amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the
future in order to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason,
including reasons relating to the Company itself or the broader economy, it may not
survive. If the Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds, sought,
it will have to find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of
Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be reguired to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital



requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. [ssuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, vour investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Preferred Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Preferred Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to
be more favorable than the terms of your investment, and possibly a lower purchase
price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward-looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions that
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

We are reliant on one main type of service
All of our current sales are related to premium fitness apparel. Our revenues are



therefore dependent upon the market for premium fitness apparel.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The Preferred Stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them.
However, you will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and therefore
will have a limited ability to influence management's decisions on how to run the
business. You are trusting in management discretion in making good business
decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation
of our company, vou will only be paid out if there is any cash remaining after all of the
creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

Insufficient Funds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating
needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it will cease operating and you will get
nothing. Even if we sell all the preferred stock we are offering now, the Company will
need to raise more funds in the future, and if it can’t get them, we will fail. Even if we
do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might result in
your investment in the company being worth less, because later investors might get
better terms.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse the offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amendment to our Form C
with the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have
the right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising
and marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at
a faster rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new products will
fail to gain market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to
achieve significant sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and
adversely impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition



We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on
the market and/or various respective product development programs. They may have
much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They
may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than
us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that
competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete or that the products
developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It
should further be assumed that competition will intensify.

We are competing against other recreational activities

Although we are a unique company that caters to a select market, we do compete
against other recreational activities. Our business growth depends on the market
interest in the Company over other activities.

We are an early stage company and have not yvet generated any profits

HYLETE, Inc. has incurred a net loss since its inception ten years ago. There is no
assurance that we will be profitable in the next 3 years and we do not expect to pay
dividends to the holders of the shares.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
owns several trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names, and trade secrets. We
believe one of the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual
property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the
rights owned by the Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its
intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is important to note that
unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade the capital of the
Company.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or
ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is
possible that competitors will be able to design around our intellectual property, find
prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some other
mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection
without obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially
and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability to compete in
the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed
unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might
be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential
revenue stream for the Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we
believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights,
we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a



multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of
enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in
light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not
to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing
our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts to prevent
competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, vour investment in
the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day-to-day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources, and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring, and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your
investment.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. [t is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As an internet-based business, we may be vulnerable to hackers who may access the
data of our investors and the issuer companies that utilize our platform. Further, any
significant disruption in service on HYLETE, Inc. or in its computer systems could
reduce the attractiveness of the platform and result in a loss of investors and
companies interested in using our platform. Further, we rely on a third-party
technology provider to provide some of our back-up technology. Any disruptions of
services or cyber-attacks either on our technology provider or on HYLETE, Inc. could
harm our reputation and materially negatively impact our financial condition and
business.



If we do not obtain adeguate capital funding or improve our financial performance, we
may not be able to continue as a going concern.

The report of our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ended
December 31, 2021 included herein contains an explanatory paragraph indicating that
there is substantial doubt as to our ability to continue as a going concern as a result of
recurring losses from operations. Our financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, which
contemplate that we will continue to operate as a going concern. Our financial
statements do not contain any adjustments that might result if we are unable to
continue as a going concern. Our ability to continue as a going concern will be
determined by our ability to raise additional capital, which will enable us to fund our
expansion plans and realize our business objectives. In addition, we have incurred a
net loss in each year since our inception and expect to incur losses in future periods
until we our revenues are sufficient to fund our operating expenses. If we are unable
to obtain adequate funding in the future, or if we are unable to grow our revenue to
achieve and sustain profitability, we may not be able to continue as a going concern.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service all of our debt or refinance
our obligations and may be forced to take other actions to satisfy our obligations
under such indebtedness, which may not be successful.

Our ability to make scheduled payments on our indebtedness or to refinance our
obligations under our debt agreements, will depend on our financial and operating
performance, which, in turn, will be subject to prevailing economic and competitive
conditions and to the financial and business risk factors we face as described in this
section, many of which may be beyond our control. We may not be able to maintain a
level of cash flows from operating activities sufficient to permit us to pay the
principal, premium, if any, and interest on our indebtedness. If our cash flows and
capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations, we may be
forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures or planned growth objectives, seek to
obtain additional equity capital or restructure our indebtedness. In the future, our
cash flows and capital resources may not be sufficient for payments of interest on and
principal of our debt, and such alternative measures may not be successful and may
not permit us to meet scheduled debt service obligations. In the absence of such
operating results and resources, we may be required to dispose of material assets to
meet our debt service obligations, as we have pledged our company assets as collateral
for certain of our outstanding debt obligations. We may not be able to consummate
those sales, or, if we do, we will not control the timing of the sales or whether the
proceeds that we realize will be adequate to meet debt service obligations when due.

We will likely need to raise additional capital required to grow our business, and we
may not be able to raise capital on terms acceptable to us or at all.

Growing and operating our business will require significant cash outlays and capital
expenditures and commitments. We have utilized cash on hand and cash generated
from operations, accessed our credit facility and issued equity and debt securities as
sources of liquidity. If cash on hand and cash generated from operations are not
sufficient to meet our cash requirements, we will need to seek additional capital,
potentially through equity or debt financing, to fund our growth. Our ability to access



the credit and capital markets in the future as a source of liquidity, and the borrowing
costs associated with such financing, are dependent upon market conditions. In
addition, any equity securities we issue, including any preferred stock, may be on
terms that are dilutive or potentially dilutive to our stockholders, and the prices at
which new investors would be willing to purchase our securities may be lower than the
offering price per share of our Class A Common Stock (which subsequently converted
into “Common Stock Units” consisting of 1 share of Common Stock and 1 share of
Series B-5 Preferred Stock of the company) sold to investors in the Offering. The
holders of any equity securities we issue, including any preferred stock, may also have
rights, preferences or privileges which are senior to those of existing holders of
Common Stock Units. If new sources of financing are required, but are insufficient or
unavailable, we will be required to modify our growth and operating plans based on
available funding, if any, which would harm our ability to grow our business.

We have an amount of debt which may be considered significant for a company of our
size which could adversely affect our financial condition and our ability to react to
changes in our business.

As of April 1, 2022, we had an aggregate principal amount of debt outstanding of
approximately $2.9 million. We believe this is an amount of indebtedness which may
be considered significant for a company of our size and current revenue base. Our
substantial debt could have important consequences to us. For example, it could: »
make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations to the holders of our
outstanding debt, resulting in possible defaults on and acceleration of such
indebtedness; » require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flows from
operations to make payments on our debt, which would reduce the availability of our
cash flows from operations to fund working capital, capital expenditures or other
general corporate purposes; « increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic
and industry conditions, including interest rate fluctuations; » place us at a
competitive disadvantage to our competitors with proportionately less debt for their
size; » limit our ability to refinance our existing indebtedness or borrow additional
funds in the future;  limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changing
conditions in our business; and = limit our ability to react to competitive pressures or
make it difficult for us to carry out capital spending that is necessary or important to
our growth strategy. Any of the foregoing impacts of our substantial indebtedness
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

If we are unable to anticipate consumer preferences and successfully develop and
introduce new, innovative and updated products, we may not be able to maintain or
increase our sales or achieve profitability.

Our success depends on our ability to timely identify and originate product trends as
well as to anticipate and react to changing consumer demands. All of our products are
subject to changing consumer preferences and we cannot predict such changes with
any certainty. Product trends in the activewear, footwear and accessories market can
change rapidly. We will need to anticipate, identify and respond quickly to changing
trends and consumer demands in order to provide the merchandise our customers
seek and maintain our brand image. If we cannot identify changing trends in advance,



fail to react to changing trends or misjudge the market for a trend, our sales could be
adversely affected, and we may be faced with a substantial amount of unsold
inventory or missed opportunities. As a result, we may be forced to mark down our
merchandise in order to dispose of slow-moving inventory, which may result in lower
profit margins, negatively impacting our financial condition and results of operations.
Even if we are successful in anticipating consumer demands, our ability to adequately
react to and execute on those demands will in part depend upon our continued ability
to develop and introduce fashionable and functional, high-quality products. If we fail
to design products in the categories and styles that consumers want, demand for our
products could decline and our brand image could be negatively impacted. Our failure
to effectively introduce new products and enter into new product categories that are
accepted by consumers could result in excess inventory, inventory write-downs,
decreases in gross margins and a decrease in net revenues, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition.

We rely on third-party suppliers and manufacturers to provide raw materials for and
to produce our products, and we have limited control over these suppliers and
manufacturers and may not be able to obtain quality products on a timely basis or in
sufficient quantity.

We rely on third-party suppliers primarily located outside of the United States to
provide raw materials for and to produce our products. The operations of our suppliers
can be subject to additional risks beyond our control, including shipping delays, labor
disputes, trade restrictions, tariffs and embargos, or any other change in local
conditions. We may experience a significant disruption in the supply of fabrics or raw
materials from current sources or, in the event of a disruption, we may be unable to
locate alternative materials suppliers of comparable quality at an acceptable price, or
at all. We do not have any long-term supply contracts in place with any of our
suppliers and we compete with other companies, including manv of our competitors,
for fabrics, raw materials, production and import quota capacity. We have occasionally
received, and may in the future receive, shipments of products that fail to comply with
our specifications or that fail to conform to our quality control standards. We have
also received, and may in the future receive, products that are otherwise unacceptable
to us or our customers. Under these circumstances, we may incur substantial expense
to remedy the problems and may be required to obtain replacement products. If we
fail to remedy any such problem in a timely manner, we risk the loss of net revenue
resulting from the inability to sell those products and related increased administrative
and shipping costs. Additionally, if the unacceptability of our products is not
discovered until after such products are purchased by our customers, our customers
could lose confidence in our products or we could face a product recall. In such an
event our brand reputation may be negatively impacted which could negatively
impact our results of operations. In addition, we do not own or operate any
manufacturing facilities and rely solely on unaffiliated manufacturers primarily
located outside the United States to manufacture our products. For the years ended
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, we estimate that approximately 80% of
our products were manufactured in China, with the remainder manufactured in other
regions. Increases in the costs of labor and other costs of doing business in the



countries in this area could significantly increase our costs to produce our products
and could have a negative impact on our operations, net revenue, and earnings. In
addition, certain of our manufacturers are subject to government regulations related
to wage rates, and therefore the labor costs to produce our products may fluctuate.
Factors that could negatively affect our business include a potential significant
revaluation of the currencies used in these countries, which may result in an increase
in the cost of producing products, labor shortage and increases in labor costs, and
difficulties in moving products manufactured out of the countries in which they are
manufactured and through the ports on the western coast of North America, whether
due to port congestion, labor disputes, product regulations and/or inspections or
other factors, and natural disasters or health pandemics. A labor strike or other
transportation disruption affecting these ports could significantly disrupt our
business. In addition, the imposition of trade sanctions or other regulations against
products imported by us from, or the loss of "normal trade relations” status with any
country in which our products are manufactured, could significantly increase our cost
of products and harm our business. These and other factors beyond our control could
result in our third-party suppliers and manufacturers being unable to fill our orders in
a timely manner. If we experience significant increased demand, or we lose or need to
replace an existing third- party supplier and manufacturer as a result of adverse
economic conditions or other reasons, we may not be able to secure additional
manufacturing capacity when required or on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all,
or manufacturers may not be able to allocate sufficient capacity to us in order to meet
our requirements. In addition, even if we are able to find new third-party suppliers or
manufacturers, we may encounter delays in production and added costs as a result of
the time it takes to train our manufacturers on our methods, products and quality
control standards. Moreover, it is possible that we will experience defects, errors, or
other problems with their work that will materially affect our operations and we may
have little or no recourse to recover damages for these losses. Any delays, interruption
or increased costs in the supply of fabric or manufacture of our products could have an
adverse effect on our ability to meet retail customer and consumer demand for our
products and result in lower net revenues and net income both in the short and long
term.

QOur third-party suppliers and customers are located in geographies currently affected
by the coronavirus.

The impact of the coronavirus or any other pandemic could affect our supply chain
and/or consumer behavior. The impact of the coronavirus outbreak has had a
significant impact on supply chains worldwide. Our company has also been affected by
this, which has resulted in extended production cycles and longer delivery times.
China’s Zero-COVID policy may result in periodic lockdowns, border closures, supply
chain disruptions and employee absenteeism, all of which could have a significant
impact on our ability to source products and could have a material adverse effect on
our financial conditions, operating results and cash flows.

Our sales and gross margins may decline as a result of increasing product costs and
decreasing selling prices.
Our business is subject to significant pressure on costs and pricing caused by many



factors, including intense competition, constrained sourcing capacity and related
inflationary pressure, pressure from consumers to reduce the prices we charge for our
products, and changes in consumer demand. These factors may cause us to experience
increased costs, reduce our prices to consumers or experience reduced sales in
response to increased prices, any of which could cause our operating margin to
decline if we are unable to offset these factors with reductions in operating costs and
could have a material adverse effect on our financial conditions, operating results and
cash flows. The fabrics used in our products include synthetic fabrics whose raw
materials include petroleum-based products, as well as natural fibers such as cotton.
Significant price fluctuations or shortages in petroleum or other raw materials can
materially adversely affect our cost of goods sold. In addition, the United States and
the countries in which our products are produced or sold internationally have imposed
and may impose additional quotas, duties, tariffs, or other restrictions or regulations,
or may adversely adjust prevailing quota, duty or tariff levels. Countries impose,
modify and remove tariffs and other trade restrictions in response to a diverse array of
factors, including global and national economic and political conditions, which make
it impossible for us to predict future developments regarding tariffs and other trade
restrictions. Trade restrictions, including tariffs, quotas, embargoes, safeguards, and
customs restrictions, could increase the cost or reduce the supply of products available
to us or may require us to modify our supply chain organization or other current
business practices, any of which could harm our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

If the technology-based systems that give our customers the ability to shop with us
online do not function effectively, our operating results could be materially adversely
affected.

The substantial majority of our customers shop with us through our e-commerce
website and mobile application. Increasingly, customers are using tablets and smart
phones to shop online with us and with our competitors and to do comparison
shopping. Any failure on our part to provide an attractive, effective, reliable, user-
friendly e-commerce platform that offers a wide assortment of merchandise with
rapid delivery options and that continually meet the changing expectations of online
shoppers could place us at a competitive disadvantage, result in the loss of sales, harm
our reputation with customers, and could have a material adverse impact on our
business and results of operations. Additionally, privacy policies that were
implemented by large technology companies such as Apple in 2021 have made
attracting customers to our e-commerce platform through marketing efforts more
difficult, impairing our ability to target individuals that may be more likely to become
a customer of our company than others. It is possible these recent changes will
continue to have a negative effect on our ability to market our products and company,
and could continue to have a material adverse impact on our business and results of
operations.

Security breaches and other disruptions could compromise our information and
expose us to liability, which would cause our business and reputation to suffer.

In the ordinary course of our business, we collect and store sensitive data, including
intellectual property, our proprietary business information, and financial and other



personally identifiable information of our customers and employees. The secure
processing, maintenance, and transmission of this information is critical to our
operations and business strategy. Despite our security measures, our information
technology and infrastructure may be vulnerable to attacks by hackers or breached
due to employee error, malfeasance, or other disruptions. Any such breach could
compromise our networks and the information stored there could be accessed,
publicly disclosed, lost, or stolen. Advanced attacks are multi-staged, unfold over
time, and utilize a range of attack vectors with military-grade cyvber weapons and
proven techniques, such as spear phishing and social engineering, leaving
organizations and users at high risk of being compromised. The vast majority of data
breaches, whether conducted by a cyber attacker from inside or outside of the
organization, involve the misappropriation of digital identities and user credentials.
These credentials are used to gain legitimate access to sensitive systems and high-
value personal and corporate data. Many large, well-known organizations have been
subject to cyber-attacks that exploited the identity vector, demonstrating that even
organizations with significant resources and security expertise have challenges
securing their identities. Any such access, disclosure, or other loss of information
could result in legal claims or proceedings, liability under laws that protect the privacy
of personal information, regulatory penalties, a disruption of our operations, damage
to our reputation, or a loss of confidence in our business, any of which could adversely
affect our business, revenues, and competitive position.

The exclusive forum provision in our Second Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation and bylaws, as amended, could limit our stockholders’ ability to obtain
a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers or employees.
Article 7 of our Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Article
8.14 of our bylaws, as amended, dictate that the Delaware Court of Chancery is the
sole and exclusive forum for certain actions including a derivative action or
proceeding brought on behalf of our company; an action asserting a breach of
fiduciary duty owed by an officer, director, employee or to the stockholders of our
company; any claim arising under the DGCL (as defined below); and any action
asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine. We do not intend this
exclusive forum provision to apply to claims under the federal securities laws. While
management believes limiting the forum is a benefit, stockholders could be
inconvenienced by not being able to bring an action in another forum they find
favorable. Note that there is uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce this
provision as it relates to claims under the federal securities laws and that stockholders
will not be deemed to have waived our compliance with federal securities laws and the
rules and regulations thereunder. A Delaware corporation is allowed to mandate in its
corporate governance documents a chosen forum for the resolution of state lawbased
stockholder class actions, derivative suits and other intra-corporate disputes.
Additionally, Delaware Chancery Courts can typically resolve disputes on an
accelerated schedule when compared to other forums. As a result, it may be more
difficult for investors located outside of the State of Delaware to bring a legal action
against us for certain claims, due to cost and geographic limitations.

We have incurred significant net losses since our inception and cannot assure you that



we will achieve or maintain profitable operations.

We have incurred significant net losses since inception. Our net loss was $2,731,787,
and $6,720,662 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. As of
December 31, 2021, we had a stockholders’ deficit of $8,067,310. We may continue to
incur significant losses in the future for a number of reasons, including unforeseen
expenses, difficulties, complications, and delays, and other unknown events. We
cannot assure you that we will achieve sustainable operating profits as we continue to
expand our infrastructure, further develop our marketing efforts, and otherwise
implement our growth initiatives. Any failure to achieve and maintain profitability
would have a materially adverse effect on our ability to implement our business plan,
our results and operations, and our financial condition, and could cause the value of
our company to decline, resulting in a significant or complete loss of vour investment.

Our success depends on our ability to uphold the reputation of our brand, which will
depend on the effectiveness of our marketing, our product quality, and our customer
experience.

We believe that our brand image and brand awareness is vital to the success of our
business. The HYLETE name is integral to our business as well as to the
implementation of our strategies for expanding our business. We also believe that
maintaining and enhancing our brand image, particularly in new markets where we
have limited brand recognition, is important to maintaining and expanding our
customer base. As we execute our growth strategy, our ability to successfully expand
into new markets or to maintain the strength and distinctiveness of our brand image
in our existing markets will be adversely impacted if we fail to connect with our target
customer. Among other things, we rely on social media platforms, such as Facebook
and Instagram , to help implement our marketing strategies and promote our brand.
QOur brand and reputation may be adversely affected if we fail to achieve these
objectives, if our public image was to be tarnished by negative publicity, if we fail to
deliver innovative and high-quality products acceptable to our customers, or if we
face a product recall. Negative publicity regarding the production methods of any of
our suppliers or manufacturers could adversely affect our reputation and sales and
force us to locate alternative suppliers or manufacturing sources. Additionally, while
we devote considerable efforts and resources to protecting our intellectual property, if
these efforts are not successful the value of our brand may be harmed. Any harm to
our brand and reputation could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition.

If we are unable to anticipate consumer preferences and successfully develop and
introduce new, innovative and updated products, we may not be able to maintain or
increase our sales or achieve profitability.

Our success depends on our ability to timely identify and originate product trends as
well as to anticipate and react to changing consumer demands. All of our products are
subject to changing consumer preferences and we cannot predict such changes with
any certainty. Product trends in the activewear, footwear and accessories market can
change rapidly. We will need to anticipate, identify and respond quickly to changing
trends and consumer demands in order to provide the merchandise our customers
seek and maintain our brand image. If we cannot identify changing trends in advance,



fail to react to changing trends or misjudge the market for a trend, our sales could be
adversely affected, and we may be faced with a substantial amount of unsold
inventory or missed opportunities. As a result, we may be forced to mark down our
merchandise in order to dispose of slow-moving inventory, which may result in lower
profit margins, negatively impacting our financial condition and results of operations.
Even if we are successful in anticipating consumer demands, our ability to adequately
react to and execute on those demands will in part depend upon our continued ability
to develop and introduce fashionable and functional, high-quality products. If we fail
to design products in the categories and styles that consumers want, demand for our
products could decline and our brand image could be negatively impacted. Our failure
to effectively introduce new products and enter into new product categories that are
accepted by consumers could result in excess inventory, inventory write-downs,
decreases in gross margins and a decrease in net revenues, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition.

Our results of operations could be materially harmed if we are unable to accurately
forecast demand for our products.

To ensure adequate inventory supply, we must forecast inventory needs and place
orders with our manufacturers based on our estimates of future demand for particular
products. Our ability to accurately forecast demand for our products could be affected
by many factors, including an increase or decrease in demand for our products or for
products of our competitors, our failure to accurately forecast acceptance of new
products, product introductions by competitors, unanticipated changes in general
market conditions, and weakening of economic conditions or consumer confidence in
future economic conditions. Inventory levels in excess of customer demand may
result in inventory write-downs or write-offs and the sale of excess inventory at
discounted prices or in less preferred distribution channels, which could impair our
brand image and have an adverse effect on gross margin. In addition, if we
underestimate the demand for our products, our manufacturers may not be able to
produce products to meet our customer requirements, and this could result in delays
in the shipment of our products and our ability to recognize revenue, lost sales, as well
as damage to our reputation and distributor relationships.

We operate in a highly competitive market and the size and resources of some of our
competitors may allow them to compete more effectively than we can, resulting in a
loss of our market share and a decrease in our net revenue.

The market for activewear is highly competitive. Competition may result in pricing
pressures, reduced profit margins or lost market share, or a failure to grow or maintain
our market share, any of which could substantially harm our business and results of
operations. We compete directly against wholesalers and direct retailers of activewear
and athletic apparel, including large, diversified apparel companies with substantial
market share and established companies expanding their production and marketing of
activewear and athletic apparel. Many of our competitors are large apparel and
sporting goods companies with strong worldwide brand recognition. Because of the
fragmented nature of the industry, we also compete with other apparel sellers,
including those specializing in apparel for yoga, CrossFit and other activities. Many of
our competitors have significant competitive advantages, including longer operating



histories, larger and broader customer bases, more established relationships with a
broader set of suppliers, greater brand recognition and greater financial, research and
development, marketing, distribution, and other resources than we do. As a result,
these competitors may be better equipped than we are to influence consumer
preferences or otherwise increase their market share by: » quickly adapting to changes
in customer requirements or consumer preferences;  discounting excess inventory
that has been written down or written off; « devoting resources to the marketing and
sale of their products, including significant advertising campaigns, media placement,
partnerships and product endorsement; and » engaging in lengthy and costly
intellectual property and other disputes. Our inability to compete successfully against
our competitors and maintain our gross margin could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our operations are currently primarily dependent on a single warehouse and
distribution center, and the loss of, or disruption in, the warehouse and distribution
center and other factors affecting the distribution of merchandise could have a
material adverse effect on our business and operations.

Our warehouse and fulfillment/distribution functions are currently primarily handled
from a single facility in Tecate, Mexico, operated by an unaffiliated third party. Our
current fulfillment/distribution operations are substantially dependent on the
continued retention of this facility. Any significant interruption in the operation of
the warehouse and fulfillment/distribution center due to natural disasters, accidents,
system issues or failures, health pandemics or other unforeseen causes that materially
impair our ability to access or use our facility, could delay or impair the ability to
distribute merchandise and fulfill online orders, which could cause sales to decline.
We also depend upon third-party carriers for shipment of a significant amount of
merchandise directly to our customers. An interruption in service by these third-party
carriers for any reason could cause temporary disruptions in business, a loss of sales
and profits, and other material adverse effects.

Qur sales and gross margins may decline as a result of increasing freight costs.

Freight costs are impacted by changes in fuel prices through surcharges, among other
factors. Fuel prices and surcharges affect freight costs both on inbound freight from
suppliers to the distribution center as well as outbound freight from the distribution
center to stores/shops, supplier returns and third-party liquidators, and shipments of
product to customers. The cost of transporting our products for distribution and sale is
also subject to fluctuation due in large part to the price of oil. Because most of our
products are manufactured abroad, our products must be transported by third parties
over large geographical distances and an increase in the price of oil can significantly
increase costs. Manufacturing delays or unexpected transportation delays can also
cause us to rely more heavily on airfreight to achieve timely delivery to our customers,
which significantly increases freight costs. Increases in fuel prices, surcharges, and
other potential factors may increase freight costs. Any of these fluctuations may
increase our cost of products and have an adverse effect on our margins, results of
operations and financial condition.

Our business is affected by seasonality.



Our business is affected by the general seasonal trends common to the retail apparel
industry. This seasonality may adversely affect our business and cause our results of
operations to fluctuate, and, as a result, we believe that comparisons of our operating
results between different quarters within a single fiscal year are not necessarily
meaningful and that results of operations in any period should not be considered
indicative of the results to be expected for anvy future period.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights, our financial results may
be negatively impacted.

Our success depends in large part on our brand image. We believe our company’s
name, logo, domain names, registered and unregistered trademarks, patents,
copyrights, and social media handles are valuable assets that serve to differentiate us
from our competitors. We currently rely on a combination of copyright, trademark,
patent, trade dress and unfair competition laws to establish and protect our
intellectual property rights. We cannot assure you that the steps taken by us to protect
our proprietary rights will be adequate to prevent infringement of our trademarks and
proprietary rights by others, including imitation and misappropriation of our brand.
We cannot assure you that obstacles will not arise as we expand our product lines and
geographic scope. The unauthorized use or misappropriation of our intellectual
property could damage our brand identity and the goodwill we created for our
company, which could cause our sales to decline. Moreover, litigation may be
necessary to protect or enforce these intellectual property rights, which could result in
substantial costs and diversion of our resources, causing a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. If we cannot
protect our intellectual property rights, our brand identity and the goodwill we created
for our company may diminish, causing our sales to decline.

We may be subject to liability if we infringe upon the intellectual property rights of
third parties.

We may be subject to liability if we infringe upon the intellectual property rights of
third parties. If we were to be found liable for any such infringement, we could be
required to pay substantial damages and could be subject to injunctions preventing
further infringement. Such infringement claims could harm our brand image.

Our future success depends on our key executive officers and our ability to attract,
retain, and motivate qualified personnel.

QOur future success largely depends upon the continued services of our executive
officers and management team. If one or more of our executive officers are unable or
unwilling to continue in their present positions, we may not be able to replace them
readily, if at all. Additionally, we may incur additional expenses to recruit and retain
new executive officers. If any of our executive officers joins a competitor or forms a
competing company, we may lose some or all of our customers. Finally, we do not
maintain “key person” life insurance on any of our executive officers. Because of these
factors, the loss of the services of any of these key persons could adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and results of operations, and thereby an investment in
our stock. In addition, our continuing ability to attract and retain highly qualified
personnel, especially employees with experience in the fashion and fitness industries,



will also be critical to our success because we will need to hire and retain additional
personnel as our business grows. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
attract or retain highly qualified personnel. We face significant competition for skilled
personnel in our industries. This competition may make it more difficult and
expensive to attract, hire, and retain qualified managers and employees. Because of
these factors, we mav not be able to effectively manage or grow our business, which
could adversely affect our financial condition or business.

Organizations face growing regulatory and compliance requirements.

New and evolving regulations and compliance standards for cyber security, data
protection, privacy, and internal IT controls are often created in response to the tide
of cyber-attacks and will increasingly impact organizations. Existing regulatory
standards require that organizations implement internal controls for user access to
applications and data. In addition, data breaches are driving a new wave of regulation
with stricter enforcement and higher penalties. Regulatory and policy-driven
obligations require expensive and time-consuming compliance measures. The fear of
non-compliance, failed audits, and material findings has pushed organizations to
spend more to ensure they are in compliance, often resulting in costly, one-off
implementations to mitigate potential fines or reputational damage. Any substantial
costs associated with failing to meet regulatory requirements, combined with the risk
of fallout from security breaches, could have a material adverse effect on our business
and brand.

We may identify material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting
that may cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations or result in material
misstatements of our financial statements. If we fail to remediate any material
weaknesses or if we fail to establish and maintain effective control over financial
reporting, our ability to accurately and timely report our financial results could be
adversely affected.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with US generally
accepted accounting principles. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Our failure to
remediate any material weakness could adversely affect our ability to report financial
information, including our filing of annual and semi-annual reports with the
Commission on a timely and accurate basis. Moreover, our failure to remediate any
material weakness could prohibit us from producing timely and accurate financial
statements.

An economic downturn or economic uncertainty in the United States may adversely
affect consumer discretionary spending and demand for our products.

Our operating results are affected by the relative condition of the United States
economy as many of our products may be considered discretionary items for



consumers. As a lifestyle brand that depends primarily on consumer discretionary
spending, our customers may reduce their spending and purchases due to job loss or
fear of job loss, foreclosures, bankruptcies, higher consumer debt and interest rates,
reduced access to credit, falling home prices, increased taxes, and/or lower consumer
confidence. Consumer demand for our products may not reach our targets, or may
decline, when there is an economic downturn or economic uncertainty. Current,
recent past, and future conditions may also adversely affect our pricing and
liquidation strategy; promotional activities, product liquidation, and decreased
demand for consumer products could affect profitability and margins. On-line
customer traffic is difficult to forecast. As a consequence, sales, operating, and
financial results for a particular period are difficult to predict, and, therefore, it is
difficult to forecast expected results for future periods. Any of the foregoing factors
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and
financial condition and could cause the value of our company to decline. Additionally,
many of the effects and consequences of U.S. and global financial and economic
conditions could potentially have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and capital
resources, including the ability to raise additional capital, if needed, or could
otherwise negatively affect our business and financial results. For example, global
economic conditions may also adversely affect our suppliers” access to capital and
liquidity with which to maintain their inventory, production levels, and product
quality and to operate their businesses, all of which could adversely affect our supply
chain. Market instability could make it more difficult for us and our suppliers to
accurately forecast future product demand trends, which could cause us to carry too
much or too little merchandise in various product categories.

From time to time, we may be subject to litigation.

On February 23, 2022, our company received a copy of a civil complaint filed in
California State Court by our company’s former CEO, Ronald L. Wilson, II (the
“Complaint™), and naming as defendants, the company, several of its current, and
former, Board Members, one of its officers, and the company’s principal investor,
Black Oak Capital (“Black Oak™). Within the Complaint, Mr. Wilson alleges, among
other things, various causes of action related to an alleged agreement between
company and Mr. Wilson, and, the company’s most recent round of financing
involving Black Oak. Specifically, the Complaint raises the following causes of action
against one or more of the defendants: breach of contract; fraudulent inducement,
intentional interference with employment contract, defamation, promissory estoppel,
and failure to pay wages owed. The company and Black Oak believe the claims made
by Mr. Wilson are without merit and they intend to defend themselves vigorously
against such claims listed in the Complaint. While the company and Black Oak believe
they will be successful in defending against Mr. Wilson’s claims, there can be no
assurance as to the outcome of this lawsuit.

Our failure to comply with trade and other regulations could lead to investigations or
actions by government regulators and negative publicity.

The labeling, distribution, importation, marketing and sale of our products are subject
to extensive regulation by various federal agencies, including the Federal Trade
Commission, Consumer Product Safety Commission and state attorneys general in the



U.S., as well as by various other federal, state, provincial, local and international
regulatory authorities in the locations in which our products are distributed or sold. If
we fail to comply with those regulations, we could become subject to significant
penalties or claims or be required to recall products, which could negatively impact
our results of operations and disrupt our ability to conduct our business, as well as
damage our brand image with consumers. In addition, the adoption of new regulations
or changes in the interpretation of existing regulations may result in significant
unanticipated compliance costs or discontinuation of product sales and may impair
the marketing of our products, resulting in significant loss of net revenues. Qur
international operations are also subject to compliance with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, or FCPA, and other antibribery laws applicable to our operations.
Although we have policies and procedures to address compliance with the FCPA and
similar laws, there can be no assurance that all of our employees, agents and other
partners will not take actions in violations of our policies. Any such violation could
subject us to sanctions or other penalties that could negatively affect our reputation,
business and operating results.

Changes to statutes or regulations, in particular, changes to Customs and Border
Patrol Section 521, could have a negative impact on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

Section 321, 19 USC 1321 (“Section 321") is the federal statute that sets the de
minimis level concerning all the international shipments headed to the United States.
De minimis provides admission of articles free of duty and of any tax imposed on or by
reason of importation. Under this statute, the ageregate fair retail value of articles
imported by one person on one day and exempted from the payment of duty shall not
exceed $800. The company currently utilizes Section 321 to significantly reduce the
total amount we pay for duties and taxes (see “The Company’s Business -- Sourcing,
Manufacturing and Quality Assurance™). Such laws and regulations are subject to
periodic review and potential revision by the U.S. Congress. The company cannot
predict the timing or ultimate outcome of any of these reviews or how any future
actions taken as a result thereof may impact its business, results of operations, cash
flows and financial condition.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or
immediate family members.

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Number of Type of Security

Stockholder Name Securities ad od Percentage
Black Oak Capital (Controlled by Series B-1
Gregory Seare) 29,475,339 Preferred Stock
Black Oak Capital (Controlled by Series B-2A
Gregory Seare) 21,933,642 Preferred Stock 57.0%
Black Oak Capital (Controlled by 1 936,074 Series B-3
Gregory Seare) Preferred Stock

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Convertible Bond, Series B-1 Preferred
Stock, Series B-2A Preferred Stock, Series B-2B Preferred Stock, Series B-3 Preferred
Stock, Series B-4 Preferred Stock, and Series B-5 Preferred Stock. As part of the
Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 5,862,068 of Series
B-2A Preferred Stock.

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 155,000,000 with a total of 19,866,241
outstanding.

Voting Rights

Each holder of the company’s Common Stock is entitled to one vote for each share on
all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders, including the election of one of the
directors of the company.

Material Rights

Dividend Rights: Holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive dividends, as may
be declared from time to time by the Board of Directors out of legally available funds
and only following payment to holders of the company's Preferred Stock. The company
has never declared or paid cash dividends on any of its capital stock and currently

does not anticipate paving any cash dividends for the foreseeable future.

Liquidation Rights: In the event of a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution,
or winding up of the company, holders of Common Stock are entitled to share ratably
in the net assets legally available for distribution to stockholders after the payment of
all debts and other liabilities of the company and the satisfaction of any lliquidation



preference granted to the holders of all shares of outstanding Preferred Stock.

Rights and Preferences: Holders of Common Stock have no preemptive, conversion, or
other rights, and there are no redemptive or sinking fund provisions applicable to the
holders of Common Stock. The rights, preferences, and privileges of the holders to the
Common Stock are subject to and may be adversely atfected by the rights of the
holders of the company's Preferred Stock. Certain holders of the Common Stock of the
company are parties to the Voting Agreement, Investor Rights Agreement and Right
of First Refusal and Co-Sale Agreement.

The below shares included in the amount outstanding have not been included in the
Company's fully diluted pre-money valuation calculation.

The amount of Common Stock outstanding includes 1,551,800 shares to be issued
pursuant to warrants outstanding.

The amount of Common Stock outstanding includes 1,345,000 shares to be issued
pursuant to options outstanding.

The amount of Common Stock outstanding includes 1,401,500 shares reserved for
issuance under the company's equity plan.

Convertible Bond

The security will convert into Common stock and the terms of the Convertible Bond
are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $684,000.00
Maturity Date: December 20, 2024
Interest Rate: 12.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Successful IPO

Material Rights
There are no material rights associated with Convertible Bond.
Series B-1 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 50,000,000 with a total of 29,475,339
outstanding.

Voting Rights
One vote per share. Please see exhibit F for full voting rights information information.
Material Rights

Conversion Rights: Shares of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock are convertible, at the



option of the holder, at any time, into fully paid and nonassessable shares of the
company's Common Stock at the then-applicable conversion rate. Please see Exhibit F
for additional information

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions: In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the company, whether voluntary or involuntary, or certain other events
such as the sale of merger of the company, as further set forth in the Second Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc., funds from such a
transaction will be distributed to the holders of shares in the order of priority set forth
in the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc.
Please see Exhibit F for additional information.

Preemptive Rights; Registration Rights : The company has entered into an Investor
Rights Agreement dated July 16, 2015 with certain investors in its Preferred Stock.
Under the Investor Rights Agreement, the company grants the investors registration
rights and grants "Major Investors”’, defined as holders of 5% of the shares of Common
Stock of the company on an as-converted basis, the right to invest up to their pro rata
share on a fully diluted basis in equity financings of the company.

Series B-2A Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 7,000,000 with a total of 800,752 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share. Please see Exhibit F for full voting rights information information.
Material Rights

Conversion Rights: Shares of the Series B-2A Preferred Stock are convertible, at the
option of the holder, at any time, into fully paid and nonassessable shares of the
company's Common Stock at the then-applicable conversion rate. Please see Exhibit F
for additional information

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions: In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the company, whether voluntary or involuntary, or certain other events
such as the sale of merger of the company, as further set forth in the Second Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc., funds from such a
transaction will be distributed to the holders of shares in the order of priority set forth
in the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc.
Please see Exhibit F for additional information.

Preemptive Rights; Registration Rights : The company has entered into an Investor
Rights Agreement dated July 16, 2015 with certain investors in its Preferred Stock.
Under the Investor Rights Agreement, the company grants the investors registration
rights and grants "Major Investors’, defined as holders of 5% of the shares of Common
Stock of the company on an as-converted basis, the right to invest up to their pro rata
share on a fully diluted basis in equity financings of the company.



Series B-2B Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 22,000,000 with a total of 21,933,642
outstanding.

Voting Rights
One vote per share. Please see Exhibit F for full voting rights information.
Material Rights

Dividend Rights: Holders of Series B-2B Preferred Stock are entitled to certain
Dividend rights. Please see exhibit F for additional information.

Conversion Rights: Shares of the Series B-2B Preferred Stock are convertible, at the
option of the holder, at any time, into fully paid and nonassessable shares of the
company's Common Stock at the then-applicable conversion rate. Please see Exhibit F
for additional information

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions: In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the company, whether voluntary or involuntary, or certain other events
such as the sale of merger of the company, as further set forth in the Second Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc., funds from such a
transaction will be distributed to the holders of shares in the order of priority set forth
in the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc.
Please see Exhibit F for additional information.

Preemptive Rights; Registration Rights : The company has entered into an Investor
Rights Agreement dated July 16, 2015 with certain investors in its Preferred Stock.
Under the Investor Rights Agreement, the company grants the investors registration
rights and grants "Major Investors”, defined as holders of 5% of the shares of Common
Stock of the company on an as-converted basis, the right to invest up to their pro rata
share on a fully diluted basis in equity financings of the company.

Series B-3 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 16,000,000 with a total of 14,142,088
outstanding.

Voting Rights
One vote per share. Please see Exhibit F for full voting rights information.
Material Rights

Conversion Rights: Shares of the Series B-3 Preferred Stock are convertible, at the
option of the holder, at any time, into fully paid and nonassessable shares of the
company's Common Stock at the then-applicable conversion rate. Please see Exhibit F
for additional information



Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions: In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the company, whether voluntary or involuntary, or certain other events
such as the sale of merger of the company, as further set forth in the Second Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc., funds from such a
transaction will be distributed to the holders of shares in the order of priority set forth
in the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc.
Please see Exhibit F for additional information.

Preemptive Rights; Registration Rights: The company has entered into an Investor
Rights Agreement dated July 16, 2015 with certain investors in its Preferred Stock.
Under the Investor Rights Agreement, the company grants the investors registration
rights and grants "Major Investors”, defined as holders of 5% of the shares of Common
Stock of the company on an as-converted basis, the right to invest up to their pro rata
share on a fully diluted basis in equity financings of the company.

Series B-4 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 16,000,000 with a total of 14,563,747
outstanding.

Voting Rights
One vote per share. Please see Exhibit F for full voting rights information information.
Material Rights

The amount of Class B-4 Preferred Stock outstanding includes 2,089,747 shares to be
issued pursuant to warrants outstanding:

Conversion Rights: Shares of the Series B-4 Preferred Stock are convertible, at the
option of the holder, at any time, into fully paid and nonassessable shares of the
company's Common Stock at the then-applicable conversion rate. Please see Exhibit F
for additional information

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions: In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the company, whether voluntary or involuntary, or certain other events
such as the sale of merger of the company, as further set forth in the Second Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc., funds from such a
transaction will be distributed to the holders of shares in the order of priority set forth
in the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc.
Please see Exhibit F for additional information.

Preemptive Rights; Registration Rights : The company has entered into an Investor
Rights Agreement dated July 16, 2015 with certain investors in its Preferred Stock.
Under the Investor Rights Agreement, the company grants the investors registration
rights and grants "Major Investors’, defined as holders of 5% of the shares of Common
Stock of the company on an as-converted basis, the right to invest up to their pro rata
share on a fully diluted basis in equity financings of the company.



Series B-5 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 19,000,000 with a total of 19,866,241
outstanding.

Voting Rights
There are no voting rights associated with Series B-5 Preferred Stock.
Material Rights

The amount of Series B-5 Preffered Stock outstanding includes 1,551,800 shares to be
issued pursuant to warrants outstanding.

The amount of Series B-5 Preffered Stock outstanding includes 1,545,000 shares to be
issued pursuant to options outstanding.

The amount of Series B-5 Preffered Stock outstanding includes 1,401,500 shares
reserved for issuance under the company's equity plan.

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions: In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the company, whether voluntary or involuntary, or certain other events
such as the sale of merger of the company, as further set forth in the Second Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc., funds from such a
transaction will be distributed to the holders of shares in the order of priority set forth
in the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hylete, Inc.
Please see Exhibit F for additional information.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Series B-2a Preferred Stock of the company, you will have
limited rights in regards to the corporate actions of the company, including additional
issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its
significant assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in
this offering may have rights less than those of other investors and will have limited
influence on the corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.



If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value
dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the
total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings
dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs
only if the company offers dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to
offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:

In an IPO;
To the company;
To an accredited investor; and

To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

Name: Common Stock

Type of security sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $1,332,312.00

Number of Securities Sold: 1,332,312

Use of proceeds: Inventory, with a focus on core products. Purchase Order
Deposits for Inventory. Tooling and other upfront costs associated with the
production of inventory. General working capital.

Date: March 27, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation A+

Name: Common Stock

Type of security sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $1,068,600.72

Number of Securities Sold: 1,234,624

Use of proceeds: Inventory, Purchase Order Deposits for Inventory, Tooling and
other upfront costs associated with the production of inventory, general working
capital.

Date: November 14, 2019

Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF



Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:
Revenue

Net sales for 2021 were $9,823,712, a decrease of 11.7% from net sales of $11,123,917
for 2020. Sales on HYLETE.com attributable to existing customers were approximately
68% for 2021 versus approximately 69% for 2020. Net sales by product category in
2021 were consistent with what we experienced in 2020 with a modest shift from tees
to pants. We believe the decrease in net sales was attributable to the difficulties in
attracting customers caused by privacy policies that were implemented by large
technology companies such as Apple in 2021, which have made targeted advertising
and marketing more difficult.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for 2021 were $4,401,034, down from $5,591,662 in 2020. Cost of sales as
a percentage of net sales yielded a gross margin of 55% in 2021 versus a gross margin
of 50% in the same time period in 2020. In May of 2020, we began to significantly
reduce our landed costs by taking advantage of the savings available under the Section
321 programs offered by US Customs and Border Protection. The company utilized
these programs in 2021 to significantly reduce the total amount we pay for duties and
taxes and thus significantly reduced landed costs in 2021 compared to 2020. The
increase in the gross margin percent was also assisted by our decision to dial back on
the level of discounting that was offered to our customers during 2021,

Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses were $3,361,295 for 2021, an increase from $2,928,844
in 2020, which represented 34.2% and 26.3% of net sales in 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The increase was due to increased marketing expenditures resulting
from a combination of higher advertising rates and our decision to increase our
investment in customer acquisition. We continue to track our marketing spend closely



and utilize benchmark e-commerce metrics such as cost per acquisition, lifetime value
per customer and others to drive allocation of our marketing resources. We anticipate
that these expenses as a percentage of revenue will decrease gradually for the
foreseeable future as we shift to more cost-effective methods of customer acquisition.

General and administrative expenses were $2,765,602 in 2021 compared to $3,956,805
in 2020. This 30.1% decrease in general and administrative expense was the result of
operating with a leaner staff in 2021 as well as a reduction in the amount of office
space under lease, which translated to lower rent costs in 2021 compared to 2020.

Shipping and distribution costs for 2021 were $2,174,772, which represented 22.1% of
net sales versus 2020 shipping and distribution costs of $2,374,013 that represented
21.3% of net sales. In July 2020, we transitioned to a new distribution partner, which
allowed us to take advantage of the savings available under the section 321 programs
offered by US Customs and Border Protection without increasing our shipping and
distribution rates. While total costs were down year over year, costs as a percentage of
revenue were up due to spreading our fixed costs over a lower revenue base.

Interest expense for 2021 increased to $1,514,817, versus $1,187,238 during 2020,
resulting from an increase in total debt outstanding and an increased interest rate
applicable to a portion of the borrowings under our Credit Agreement (as defined and
described below). In addition, we recorded a non-cash gain of $1,876,980 reflecting
the change in fair value of outstanding Preferred Stock warrants, which were
reclassified in June 2021 to equity following the elimination of the contingent
redemption feature of the underlying stock, as discussed below under “Liquidity and
Capital Resources — Equity Issuances” below.

Net Income

As a result of the foregoing, we incurred a net loss for the 12 months ended December
31,2021 of $2,731,787 versus a net loss in the same period of 2020 of $6,720,662- a
decrease of 59.4% in net loss. The company currently expects we will incur a modest
loss in 2022, It is possible that we will continue to incur losses in the future if we
experience unforeseen expenses, difficulties, complications, and delays, and other
unknown events.

Historical results and cash flows:

With the pivot to the omni channel strategy, HYLETE expects to cut our losses
substantially in 2022 and our goal is to achieve breakeven in 2023.

We do not believe that HYLETE's past financial performance will be indicative of our
future results as HYLETE is making a concerted effort to move towards both cash flow
neutrality and profitability.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,



existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

Since inception, we have funded operations through the issuance of equity securities,
debt instruments and convertible notes, As of December 31, 2021, our cash on hand
was $59,661.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

To fund operations, we have been working on a new capital infusion from our
investors and/or lenders. Based on our business and development plans, we are
dependent upon raising a minimum of $2.0 million in combined debt and equity to
fund operations for a period in excess of one year from April 2022. As of April 2022, we
do not have capital to fund operations through the end of 2022. Our future capital
requirements will depend on many factors, including: the costs and timing of future
product and marketing activities, including product manufacturing, marketing, sales
and distribution for any of our products; the expenses needed to attract and retain
skilled personnel; and the timing and success of the private placement of debt and/or
equity. Until such time, if ever, as we can generate more substantial product revenues,
we expect to finance our cash needs through a combination of equity or debt
financings.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

Yes, this campaign will provide a substantial portion of the funds needed to operate in
2022.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

Through the end of Q2 2022 based on current expense run rates.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

We estimate that the maximum raise along with our other fund raising efforts would
allow us to achieve cash flow neutrality.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)



A concurrent Reg D offering of Series B-1 Preferred Stock.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: Small Business Administration EIDL Loan
Amount Owed: $150,000.00
Interest Rate: 5.75%
Maturity Date: June 04, 2050

e Creditor: Celtic Bank
Amount Owed: $28,378.00
Interest Rate: 19.8%

e Creditor: Crossroads Financial, LLC
Amount Owed: $1,770,000.00
Interest Rate: 16.0%

Maturity Date: January 05, 2024

o Creditor: Regulation A+ Bond Offering Noteholders
Amount Owed: $946,000.00
Interest Rate: 12.0%
Maturity Date: May 18, 2024

Related Party Transactions

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $27,379,990.98
Valuation Details:

Our valuation is based on the currently issued amount of shares (94,413,762) x the
purchase price per share of this offering ($0.29).

A common method of determining a company's valuation is to take a valuation of a
company’s previous securities sale (other than the initial sale to the company’s
founders), and take into account changes in the company since such sale. On April 1,
2022, we sold six million dollars worth of equity to a third party at the same valuation
we are using for this crowdfunding round. We also sold $230,000 worth of equity at
this price in October of 2021. Given the proximity of these sales, we do not believe that
there are any significant changes that we would need to take into account. For
reference, please see an exerpt from the Debt Conversion Agreement that was was
entered into by the company and its former lenders, effective as of April 1, 2022.

Section 4 of the Debt conversion Agreement reads as follows:



"Conversion of Debt to Equity. As of the Effective Date herein, the Black Oak Lenders
hereby convert all of the Debt (six million dollars ($6,000,000)) into B-2b Preferred
Stock of the Company, at a price of $0.28725 per share, and equivalent to twenty
million eight hundred eighty-nine thousand one hundred eighty-three (20,859,182)
shares of such B-2b Preferred Stock, and to include any and all rights and preferences
in such shares as described in the Company s Second Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation.”

As a secondary check, we also took into account the two data points below to
determine that the valuation represents a price to sales ratio of 2.76.

Trailing 12 months revenue $9,823,712
Company Valuation $27,118,465

Another valuation consideration is a comparison to the valuation of competitors. If
you research other premium apparel brands you will see that a price to sales ratio of
2.76 is consistent with others in our space and is less than half of what our nearest
competitor, Lululemon is trading at today.

This valuation was calculated internally without the use of any formal independent
third-party evaluation

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In making this
calculation, we have assumed:

(1) all preferred stock, other than Series B-5 Preferred Stock which cannot convert, is
converted to common stock;

In making this calculation, we have not assumed:
(1) any outstanding options and warrants have been exercised; or
(ii) any shares reserved for issuance under a stock plan are issued.

The pre-money valuation does not take into account any convertible securities
currently outstanding. The Company currently has $6584,000 in Convertible Bonds
outstanding. Please refer to the Company Securities section of the Offering
Memorandum for further details regarding current outstanding convertible securities
which may affect your ownership in the future.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,999.78 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

e Marketing



94.5%
Advertising and customer acquisition

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,699,999.72, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

o Marketing
30.0%
Advertising and customer acquisition

o Working Capital
64.5%
Inventory and logistics costs

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at www.hylete.com
(https://www.hylete.com/financials).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;



(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) 1t liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/hylete
Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.



EXHIBIT B TO FORM C
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW FOR HYLETE, Inc.

[See attached]
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of HYLETE. Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanving balance sheets of HY LETE, Inc. (the “*Company™) as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, the related statements of operations, stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows, for the years then
ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements™). In our opinion, the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring
losses from operations and negative net cash used in operating activities, which raises substantial doubt
about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also
described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the
outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting
firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB™) and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company 1s not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are
required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

s/ dbbmckennon
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2017,

San Diego, California
May 2, 2022




HYLETE, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS
Current Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Vendor deposits
Other current assets
Total current assets

Mon-Current Assets:
Property and cquipment, net
Goodwill
Other non-current assets
Total non-current asscts
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS® DEFICIT
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Other current liabilities

Loan payable, net of issuance costs

Convertible loan payable

Current portion of bonds

Convertible bonds

Total current liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities:
Other long-term liabilitics
Loan payable, net of current portion and issuance costs
Loan payable- related party, net of 1ssuance costs
Bonds, net of current portion and issuance costs
Convertible bonds, net of current portion
Preferred stock warrant Liabality

Total non-current liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Redeemable Preferred Stock:

Series A preferred stock, 30,001 par value, 1,712,200 total shares authorized, 1,712,200 1ssued

and outstanding at December 31, 2020 {liquidation preference of $603,920)

Series A-1 preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,970,300 total shares authorized, 5,970,300
1ssued and outstanding at December 31, 2020 (hgudation preference of $3,363,574)

Series A-2 preferred stock, 50.001 par value, 10,000,000 total shares authorized, 4,791,500
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020 (liguidation preference of $4,154,399)

Seres AA preferred stock, 30,001 par value, 35,000,000 total shares authonized, 14,142,088
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020 (liguidation preference of $8,685,246)

Total redeemable preferred stock

Stockholders' Deficit:

Series B-1 preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 30,000,000 total shares authorized, 29, 475 330
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 (hguidation preferences of 59,000,000

Series B-2a preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 7,000,000 total shares authorized, 204,752
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 (liquidation preferences of $690,000)

Series B-2b preferred stock, 30,001 par value, 22,000,000 total shares authorized, 0 issued and

outstanding at December 31, 2021 {liquidation preferences of $0)
Series B-3 preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 19,000,000 total shares authonized, 14,142,088
1ssued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 (liquidation preferences of $8.685.246)
Series B-4 preferred stock, S0.001 par value, 16,000,000 total shares authorized, 12,474,000
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 (hguidation preferences of $9.434,.212)
Unit consisting of one share of common stock and one share of Series B-5 preferred stock
(“Common Stock Unit™), $0.001 par value, 155,000,000 of commaon stock total shares

2021 2020
59661 § 153,301
31,329 56,737
3,065,154 2,795,559
464,284 188,969
Q9. 683 156,298
3,720,111 3,351,564
193,530 40,329
426,059
61,250
| 93,530 327,638
3913641 § 3,879,002
3,135997 % 2,501,322
759,506 883,930
250,000 =
124,337 5,841,010
- 200,000
208,750
609,000
4,269,840 10,244,012
50,000 75,000
158,861 424,069
6,556,250 —
262,000 50,000
GRERITN] 75,000
- 2,059.4971
7711111 2,684,040
11,980,951 12,928,052
- 603,920
- 3,363,574
- 4,154,399
- 6,200,623
N 14322516
2,830,803 -
1.439.382 -
1,269,604 —

15,587



authorized, 19,000,000 of Series B-5 preferred stock total shares authorized, 15,587,941
units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021 (Sernies B-5 preferred stock higquidation
preferences of $7,793.971)

Class A common stock, $0.001 par value, 36,000,000 total shares authorized, 15,195,394
1ssued and outstanding at December 31, 2020

Subscription receivable

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit
Total Stockholders' Defient

TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

See accompanying notes o inancial statements,
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- 15,195
(52,930

19,344,778 7,131,846
(33,197,464) (30,465,677)
(8.067.310) (23.371.566)
3.013,641 § 3,879,002




STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

MNet Sales
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit

Operating Expenses:
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Shipping and distribution
Goodwill impairment
Total Operating Expenses

Loss from Operations

Insurance proceeds

PPP loan forgiveness

Interest expense

Other expense

Warrants 1ssued for legal settlement

Change in fair market value of Series A-2 warrant liability
{Gain) loss on disposal of long-term assets

Loss on debt extinguishment

Met Loss

Accrual of Preferred Stock Dividend and Discount Amortized

Met Loss Attributable to Comimon Stockholders

Basic and diluted loss per common share
Weighted average shares- basic and diluted

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2021 2020
9823712 11,123,917
4,401,034 5,591,662
5422678 5,532,255
3,361,295 2,928 844
2,765,602 3,956,805
2,174,772 2,374,013

426,059 -
8,727,728 0,259 662
(3,305.050) (3,727.407)

- (B65,828)

(10,0009 (492,555)

1.314.817 1,187,238
57,500

- 949,067
(1,876,980) (870)
{1,100 300,703
1,858,000

(2,731,787) § (6,720,662)

(259.412) (570,553)
{2,991,199) § (7,291,215)

(0.19) § {0.50)
15,528,641 14,575,697




HYLETE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

Preferred Stock Common Stock Unit Common Stock A Common Stock B
Shares MArmosuni Shares Amaunt Shares Amount Shares Amoumnt

Balance as of
December 31,
209 10214, 16t a4 M RIS R

Mt Loss

Met proceeds

from sale of

commeon stock 1.0014,4249 1014
Dividend

RCCTElION o

prcfermed stock - - - - - - - -
Amuoritzation of

issuance costs

on preferred

stock - - - - - - - -
Comversion from

Class B 1o Class

A commion

stock - - - - 3 0n6 8045 3067 {3964 803 {3.96T)
Class A commion

stock warranis

issued for legal

setlement - - - - - - - -
Stock-hused

COMRENEaton - - - - - - - -

Balance as of

Decembaer 31,
{1 - 5 - - 5 - 15,145,304 by 15,195 - 3 -

Mt Loss - - - - - - - -

Met proceeds

from sale of

commaon stock - - IR0.64T £ - - - -
Dividend

aCCTEdIOn on

prefiemed siock - - - - - - - -
Reclassificaiion

of Common

Stock A to

Comman Stock

Unit -
Reclassificaiion

of preferred

stock warrant

lnbality to

additional paid-

in copatal - - - - - - - -
Elimination of

prefemed stock

redempiion

charactenstc 266 6, 08E 14,581,929 - - - - - -
Equity conversion

to Seres B

preferred siock - (11,872 943) - - - - - -
Debt conversion

o Series B-2a

preferred stock R, 752 230,00 - - - - - -
Met procesds

from sale of

Series B

preferred stock 29,475,339 2530, 803 - - - - - -
Exercise of stock

optroms amd

Wwarrants - - 11,54l iz - - - -
Stock-based
COMmpETEatioan - - - - - - - -

15,195.3% 13,195 (15,1%5,394) (15,195} - -

Balance as of
December 31,

021 36,892,179 3 5,769,789 15,587,541 5 15,587 - i — - 5 -

(Comntimued )




Balance as of December 31, 20019
et Loss

Met procesds from sale of common stock

Dividend aceretion on preferred stock

Amortization of issuance costs on prefermed stock
Comversion from Class B w Class A common stock

Clazs A commion stock warrants issued for legal settlement
Sock-based compensation

Balance as of December 31, 2020
Mt Loss
Mt proceeds from sale of common stock

Dividend acceretion on prefemed stock
ReclassiNeatnon of Commaon Stock A o Common Stock Lini

Reclassification of preferred stock warrant liability to additional paid-in

capital
Elimination of preferred stock redemption charactenistic
Equity conversion to Series B preferred stock
Dbt conversion (o Series B-2a preferred stock
Met proceeds from sale of Senes B preferred stock
Execreise of stock options and warrants
Stock-based compensation

Balance as of December 31, 2021

HYLETE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

Comman Stock Additiomal
Subscription To Be Paid-in Accumulated Stockholders'
Receivahle Issued Capital Dieficit Deeficit
[20,806) 21,400 5,785 877 (23, 745,015) (17.944,453)
- - - (6, 720,662) (6, 720,662 )
(32,034} (21,4000 706,558 - T44, 138
{565, {563, S0}
= _ {4.563) = i(4,563)
- - 49 067 - 949,067
170 R 17 E5T
§ (529300 - 3 7,131,846 £ (4856771 §  (23,371,566)
e e — e — e e —
(2,731, 787) (2,731,787}
52,930 318,003 T3S
- - (259.412) - (259.412)
1829491 182,991
- - - - 14581929
11,872,943
- - - - 230,000
2,830,803
- - R - 208
os211 9R.211
5 - 5 - 5 19,344,778 £ {33,197 44) 5 (8067310}
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HYLETE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments:

Depreciation and amartization

Stock-based compensation

Loss on legal settlements

Amortization of debt discounts

Met (gain) loss on disposal of long-term assets

Met (gam) loss on debt extinguishment

Issuance of Series AA preferned stock for employee severance

Goodwill impaimment

Change in farr market value of Senes A-2 warrant lability
Changes in:

Agcounts receivable

Inveniory

Wendor deposits

Other current assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Other current liabilities

MNet Cash used in Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchases of intangible assets
Other non-current assets
Met Cash used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings on loans pavable
Pavments on loans payable
Met proceeds from sale of comimon stock
Subscription receivable
Common stock to be issued
Met proceeds from sale of preferred stock
Net Cash provided by Financing Activities

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of vear
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Reclassification of preferred stock warrant liability to additional paid-in capital
Accretion of preferred stock dividends

Accretion of preferred stock discounts

Elimination of preferred stock redemption charactenstic

Equity conversion to Series B preferred stock

Debt conversion to Series B preferred stock

Dieht conversion to Series AA preferred stock

Accrued interest added to principal balance

Accrued interest and fees added to equity balance of Series B-1 purchase

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

il

2021 2020

5 (2,731,787 % (6, 720,662)
73,499 150,747
98,211 170,897
- 1,049,067
63,668 258,121
{1100 497 504
( 10,000 1,375,445
- 1 50,000
426,059 -

(1,876,980 (870)
25408 131,370
[269.595) 978,298

(275.315) (165,872)
36613 72,020

634,673 (629,367)

136,201 [342,059)
250,000 -

(3.400.441) (3,025 361)
(226, 700) =
1, 100 201, 0iH)

- (19,643)

61250 (145,222)

(164, 350) (148, 865)
TO2 300 1,522 955

(433.973) (233,380)
J18.591] 197,572

52,930 (32,034)

(21,400
2 830,803 100, (K
3,470,631 2,133,713

(94,140) (1,040,513)
153,801 1,194,314
5 59.661 % 133,801
5 205092 % BLOETS
5 won % 07
5 182091 8§ -
5 259412 % 565,905
5 b3 4,563

5 14,581,929 §
5 11,3723 %

5 230000 % -
5 - £ 4092623
5 - % 57,000
5 245046 % —




HYLETE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Organization and Nature of Business

HYLETE, LLC was organized under the laws of the State of California on March 26, 2012, In January 2015, the HYLETE, LLC was converted to a
California corporation named HYLETE. Inc. (referred to as “HYLETE™ or the “Company™). The Company reincorporated in Delaware in January
2019. The Company’s principal corporate office is located at 11622 El Camino Real Suite 100, San Diego, California 92130, and its telephone
number 15 (858) 225-8998, Our website address 18 www . hylete.com. The Company speciahizes in the design, development, and distnbution of
premium performance apparel, direct to consumers through its own website, affiliate marketing partners and select third party retailers.

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of COVID-19 as a pandemic, which continues to spread throughout the United
States. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there i1s uncertainty around the duration.

COVID-19 has been a highly disruptive economic and societal event that has affected our business and has had a significant impact on consumer
shopping behavior. In March of 2020, the Company assigned most of the workforce in our San Diego headquarters to work from home. As of the
date of this report, the majority of the Company’s work force is continuing to work from home. We expect to return to the office sometime in 2022,

As the Company’s third-party logistics partner is qualified as essential businesses as defined by the relevant regulations, we continued to ship from
our fulfillment center with little disruption. Early in the pandemic, the reduced manpower in warehouses, together with increased DTC orders, led 1w
minor delivery delays. We have not experienced any significant disruptions in our supply chain or any significant carrier interruptions or delays. If,
as a result of COVID-19, we face disruptions in our supply chain, or are unable to continue to ship from our third-party fulfillment center or timely
deliver orders to our customers, we may not be able to retain our customers or attract new customers,

The ultimate financial impact on the Company’s future operating results and consolidated financial statements cannot be reasonably estimated at this
time. However, as of the date of this report, the Company has experienced stable demand for its products so it does not expect this matter will have a
material negative impact on its business, results of operations, and financial position.

Note 2 — Going Concern

The accompanying fnancial statements have been prepared on a going concemn basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has incurred losses from operations and has a working capital deficit of
%0.5 million and an accumulated deficit of approximately $33.2 million as of December 31, 2021, The Company requires substantial capital o
implement their plans and meet obligations as they become due. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’'s ability to continue as a
20ing concern.

To fund operations, the Company has been working with our investors as well as our lenders. Based on our business and development plans, the
Company is dependent upon raising a minimum of $2.0 million in combined debt and eguity to fund operations for a period in excess of one year
from the date of this report, As of May 2, 2022, we do not have capital to fund operations through the end of Q2 2022, Our future capital
requirements will depend on many factors, including: the costs and timing of future product and marketing activities, including product
manufacturing, marketing, sales and distribution for any of our products; the expenses needed to attract and retain skilled personnel; and the timing
and success of the private placement of debt and/or equaty. Until such time, 1f ever, as we can generate more substantial product revenues, we expect
to finance our cash needs through a combination of equity or debt financings.

In order to meet these additional cash requirements, we may seck to sell additional equity or convertible sccurities that may result in dilution to our
stockholders. If we raise additional funds through the issuance of convertible securities, these securities could have rights senior to those of our
common stock and could contain covenants that restrict our operations, There can be no assurance that we will be able 1o obtain additional equaty or
debt financing on terms acceptable to us, if at all. If we raise additional funds through collaboration and licensing agreements with third parties, it
may be necessary to relinguish valuable rights to our product candidates or future revenue streams or to grant licenses on terms that may not be
favorable to us.
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Note 3 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis for presentation - These financial statements of HYLETE, Inc. have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of Amenca (“US GAAP™).

Aceounting estimates — The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Examples of our significant accounting estimates
that may involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity than others include: the valuation of inventories; the valuation and assessment of the
recoverability of goodwill and other indefinite-lived and long-lived assets; and the fair market value of the common and preferred stock warrant

liabilitics. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair value of financial instruments — Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. ASC 820 also establishes a fair
value hierarchy that requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value.

The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used o measure fair value:

The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs used in valuation techniques into three levels as follows:

Level 1

Observable imputs — unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and habilities;

Level 2

Observable inputs — other than the quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability through corroboration with market
data; and

Level 3

Unobservable inputs — includes amounts derived from valuation models where one or more significant inputs are unobservable.

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, vendor deposits, accounts pavable, and accrued
expenses. The carrying value of these assets and liabilities is representative of their fair market value, due to the short maturity of these instruments.

The carrying value of the long-term loan payable to stockholder represent fair value as the terms approximate those currently available for similar
debt instruments.
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The Company's preferred stock warrant hiabilities are carmed at fair value, The fair value of the Company’s preferred stock warrant habilities has
been measured under the Level 3 hierarchy (Note 9). Changes in preferred stock warrant liabilities during the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

Fair Value of
Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
Fair Value

Preferred Warrants

Outstanding as of December 31, 2019 b 2,060,841

Warrants granted -
Change in fair value (BT
Reclassification to additional paid-in capital -

Outstanding as of December 31, 2020 b 2,059,971

Warrants granted 5 -
Change in fair value {(1,876,980)
Feclassification to additional paid-in capital (182,991)
Outstanding as of December 31, 2021 % a

Cash and cash equivalents — Cash includes highly liquid short-term investments purchased with onginal maturitics of ninety davs or less.

Concentration of eredit risk — Financial imstruments that potentially subject the Company 1o credit nsk consist principally ol accounts receivable
and cash. At various times throughout the period, the Company had cash deposits in a financial institution in excess of the amount insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Management considers the risk of loss to be minimal due to the credit worthiness of the financial institution.
Concentrations of nsk with respect to receivables are himited due to the diversity of the Company™s customer base, Credit 15 extended based on an
evaluation of the customer’s financial condition and collateral generally is not required.

Accounts receivable — The Company carnes its accounts receivable at invoiced amounts less allowances for customer credits, doubtful accounts
and other deductions. The Company does not accrue interest on its trade receivables. Management evaluates the ability to collect accounts
receivable based on a combination of factors. Receivables are determined to be past due based on individual eredit terms, A reserve for doubtful
accounts is maintained based on the length of time receivables are past due, historical collections or the status of a customer’s financial position. The
Company did not have a reserve recorded as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, Receivables are written off in the year deemed uncollectible after
efforts to collect the receivables have proven unsuccessiul. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company wrote off 53,818 and
56,046 of uncollectible accounts, respectively.

Inventory — Inventory 15 comprised of finished goods and is stated at the lower of cost, determined using the first-in, first-out method, or net
realizable value.

Yendor deposits — Vendor deposits represent amounts paid in advance to the Company’s vendors for inventory purchases to be produced and
received at a future date.
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Property and equipment — Property and equipment are recorded at cost, Depreciation 15 computed using the strmght-ling method over estimated
uscful lives of the assets, which range from two to five years. Leaschold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or their
estimated useful lives.

Goodwill and intangible assets — Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the value assigned to the net tangible and 1dentifiable
intangible assets of businesses acquired. Acquired intangible assets other than goodwill are amortized over their useful lives unless the lives are
determined to be indefinite. For intangible assets purchased in a business combination, the estimated fair values of the assets received are used to
establish their recorded values. For intangible assets acquired in a non-monetary exchange. the estimated fair values of the assets transferred {or the
estimated fair values of the assels recerved, if more clearly evident) are used to estabhsh their recorded values, unless the values of neither the assets
received nor the assets transferred are determinable within reasonable limits, in which case the assets received are measured based on the cammying
values of the assets transferred. Valuation techniques consistent with the market approach, income approach and/or cost approach are used to
measure fair value,

Product designs acquired from GRACEDBYGRIT were determined to have a useful life of 18 months and were amortized using the straight-line
method, During the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, we amortized 30 and 554,822, respectively, As of December 31, 2020, product
designs were fully amortized.

Impairment of Goodwill and long-lived assets — Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested annually for impairment in the
tourth fiscal quarter and in interim periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the assets may be impaired. If a qualitative assessment
15 wsed and we determine that the fair value of a reporting unit or indefinite-hived intangible asset 18 more hkely than not (1.e., a hikelthood of more
than 50%%) less than its carrying amount, a quantitative impairment test will be performed. If goodwill is quantitatively assessed for impairment and
a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, the difference is recorded as an impairment. Other indefinite-lived intangible assets are
quantitatively assessed for impairment, if necessary, by comparing their estimated fair values to their carrying values, If the carrving value exceeds
the fair value, the difference is recorded as an impairment. During the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, a goodwill impairment of
$426,059 and $0 was recorded, respectively.

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment and intangible assets subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment when there is
evidence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving amount of an asset or assel group may nol be recoverable, Recoverabiliny
of assets to be held and used 1s measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset or asset group to estimated undiscounted future cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset or asset group. If the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an
impairment charge 15 recognized for the amount by which the carryving amount of the asset or asset group exceeds the estimated fair value of the
asset or asset group. Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale are reported at the lower of their carrying amounts or their estimated fair values less
costs to sell and are not depreciated. During the vear ended December 31, 2021, no impairment was needed. During the year ended December 31,
2020, we expensed items related to patents and trademarks which no longer represented long-lived assets,

Accounting for preferred stock — ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity, includes standards for how an issuer of equity (including

equity shares issued by consolidated entitics) classifies and measures on its balance sheet certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
liabilities and equity.
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Management 15 required 1o determine the presentation for the preferred stock as a result of the redemption and conversion provisions, among other
provisions in the agreement. Specifically, management is required to determine whether the embedded conversion feature in the preferred stock is
clearly and closely related to the host instrument, and whether the bifurcation of the conversion feature 15 required and whether the conversion
feature should be accounted for as a denvative instrument, I the host instrument and conversion feature are determined to be clearly and closely
related (both more akin to equity), derivative liability accounting under ASC 815, Denivatives and Hedging, is not required. Management
determined that the host contract of the preferred stock is more akin to equity, and accordingly, derivative liability accounting is not required by the
Company. In addition, at December 31, 2020 the Company has presented preferred stock outside of stockholders' deficit due to the potential
redemption of the preferred stock being outside of the Company's control. The potential redemption feature no longer exists as of December 31,
2021, and the preferred stock 18 now shown inside the stockholders” dehieit section, (See Note 10,

Costs incurred directly for the issuance of the preferred stock are recorded as a reduction of gross proceeds received by the Company, which
resulted in a discount to the redeemable preferred stock, The discount was amortized to additional paid-in capital, over the period to redemption
using the effective interest method of accounting. Dividends which were required to be paid upon redemption were accrued and recorded within
preferred stock and additional paid-in capital, The potential redemption feature no longer exists as of December 31, 2021,

Warrants to purchase preferred stock — The Company accounted for freestanding warrants related to preferred shares that were redeemable in
accordance with ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity, Under ASC 480, freestanding warrants to purchase shares of redeemable
preferred stock were classified as liabilities on the balance sheet at fair value because the warrants may have conditionally obligated us to transfer
assets at some point in the future. The Company estimated the fair value of these warrants using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The
potential redemption leature no longer exists as ol December 31, 2021, See Note 9 for addinonal information,

Revenue recognition — Revenues are recognized when performance obligations are satisfied through the transfer of promised goods to the
Company’s customers, Control transfers upon shipment of product and when the title has been passed to the customers. This includes the transfer of
legal title, physical possession, the risks and rewards of ownership, and customer acceptance. Revenue is recorded net of sales taxes collected from
customers on behalf of taxing authorities, allowance for estimated returns, chargebacks, and markdowns based upon management’s estimates and
the Company’s historical experience. The Company’s liability for sales retum refunds is recognized within other current liabilities, and an asset for
the value of inventory which is expected to be retumed is recognized within other current assets on the balance sheets. The Company generally
allows a 60 day right of return to 1ts customers. The Company has a reserve for returns of 562,915 and 5117808 recorded within accrued expenses
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Proceeds from the sale of gift cards are imitially deferred and recognized within acerued expenses
on the balance sheets and are recognized as revenue when tendered for payment. Based on historical experience, and to the extent there is no
requirement to remit unclaimed card balances to government agencies, an estimate of the @it card balances that will never be redeemed 15
recognized as revenue in proportion to gift cards which have been redeemed. In addition, the Company records a liability for deposits for future
products, credits provided o equity investors in connection with their investment, etc. The liability 15 relieved, and the revenue is recognized once
the revenue recognition critena 1s met. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, deferred revenue of approximately $234,000 and $240,000 were present
within accrued liabilities on the accompanying balance sheets, respectively. Of these amounts, approximately $234.000 and £210,000 related to
credits provided to equity investors in connection with their investmenits as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

During 2018 and 2017, the Company offered investors a store credit at HYLETE com in the amount of 10% of their equity investment(s) for that
year, When investors utilize their store eredit the deferred revenue 15 recognized, and the habality associated with the store credit 15 removed from
the balance sheet.

For the lovalty program, the Company increases or decreases the lovalty points hability based on point balance at the end of cach month. The

liability 1s recognized in accrued expenses on the balance sheet. The liability calculation is equal to the total points accrued multiplied by the cash
value multiplied by the percentage of predicted use multiplied by the estimated cost of goods sold.
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Cost of sales — Cost of sales consists primarily ol inventory and freight n.

Merchandise risk — The Company’s success is largely dependent upon its ability to gauge the fashion tastes of its targeted consumers and provide
merchandise that satisfies consumer demand. Any inabihity to provide appropriate merchandise in sufficient guantities in a timely manner could
have material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results and financial condition.

Shipping and handling — The Company recognizes shipping and handling billed to customers as a component of net sales, and the cost of shipping
and handling as a component of operating expenses. Total shipping and handling billed to customers as a component of net sales was approximately
B169,000 and 5272000, for the yvears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Total shipping and handhing costs included in operating
expenses was approximately 31,321,000 and 31,443,000, for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Advertising and promotion — Advertising and promotional costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotional expense for the vears
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to approximately 31,270,000 and 3848 (00, respectively, which is included in selling and marketing
expense,

Stock based compensation — The Company estimates the fair value of the stock warrants and options using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The expected lives were determined using the simplified method. Key input assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock warrants
and options include the exercise price of the award, the expected term, the expected volatility of the Company's stock over the expected term, the
risk-free interest rate over the term, the Company expected annual dividend yield and forfeiture rate. The Company's management believes that the
valuation techmgue and the approach utihzed to develop the underlying assumptions are appropriate in esiimating the fair value of the Company’s
stock warrants and options granted. Estimates of fair value are not intended to predict actual future events or the value ultimately realized by persons
who receive equity awards. The Company had no data to support estimates of expected forfeitures.

Deferred offering costs — Costs associated with the offering of shares are capitalized as other assets. Upon successful issuance, these costs will
reduce additional-paid-in capital or as a discount to related borrowings, or if unsuccessful, recognized as general and administrative expense.

Legal proceedings - If there is at least a reasonable possibility that a material loss may have been incurred associated with pending legal and
regulatory proceedings, the Company discloses such Tact, and i reasonably estimable, the Company provides an estimate of the possible loss or
range of possible loss, if any. Where a range of loss can be reasonably estimated with no best estimate in the range, the Company records the
minimum estimated liability. As additional information becomes available, the Company assess the potential liability related to pending legal and
regulatory proceedings and revise our estimates and update our disclosures accordingly, The Company™s legal costs associated with defending mself
are recorded to expense as incurred.

Income taxes — The Company has elected to be taxed under the provisions of subchapter C of the Intemal Revenue Code. Income taxes are
therefore accounting for using an asset and liability approach that requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected
future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities at the applicable enacted tax
rates. A valuation allowance is provided when it 1s more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized from
future operations. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization include the Company’s forecast of future taxable income and available tax
planning strategies that could be implemented to realize the net deferred tax assets,

Uncertain tax positions — The Company accounts for uncertain tax provisions in accordance with ASC 740-10. ASC 740-10 prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement process for accounting for uncertain tax positions and also provides gundance on vanous related matters
such as de-recognition, interest, penalties, and disclosures required. As of the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company does not have
any entity-level uncertain tax positions. The Company files 1.5, federal and various state income tax returns, which are subject to examination by
the taxing authorities for three to four years from filing of a tax return.

Sales tax — Taxes collected from the Company’s customers are and have been recorded on a net basis. This obligation 15 included in acerued
expenses in the accompanying balance sheets until the taxes are remitted to the appropriate taxing authorities.
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Basic loss per common share — Basic loss per share 15 caleulated by dividing the Company’s net loss applicable to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares during the period. Diluted camings per share is calculated by dividing the Company's net loss
available to common shareholders by the diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. The diluted weighted average
number of shares outstanding 15 the basic weighted number of shares adjusted for any potentially dilutive debt or equity. The Company's common
stock equivalents consist of common stock issuable upon the conversion of preferred stock, and exercise of options and warrants. As of the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the effect of dilutive securities was anti-dilutive and thus 1s not included. For the yvears ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, total shares excluded were 61,896,415 and 32,350,318, respectively (shares that would result from the conversion of the convertible
bonds are not included due to the fact that the conversion price cannot be determined at this time). Basic and dilutive net loss per common share for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, includes acerued preferred stock dividends of 5259412 and 5565,990, and preferred stock discount
accretion of $0 and 54,563, respectively, as an increase to net loss available for common sharcholders.

Total shares excluded consisted of the following for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:;

2021 2020
Common stock options 1.457.689 2,187,683
Common stock warrants 1.456. 800 1. 456,800
Preferred stock shares 56,892,179 26,616,088
Preferred stock warrants 2089747 2,089 747
61,596,415 32,350,318

Recently issued accounting pronouncements

Accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-sctting bodies are not expected to have a material impact
on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 4 — Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
Auto 3 47784 § 49,576
Computer Hardware and Software 6,859 79,325
Office Furmiture, Fixtures and Equipment 61,388 73177
Leaschold Improvements 75419
Website Development 354,029 252,529
Production Molds 215,500 90,300
739,560 620,326
Accumulated Depreciation (546,030) (579,997)
b 193,530 § 40,129

Depreciation and amortization expense related o property and equipment amounted to approximately 573,000 and 596,000 for the vears ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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Note 5 — Loans Payable, Related Party

On June 29, 2016, the Company entered into a senior credit agreement with a lender (Black Oak Capital). Black Oak Capital 15 also the lead
investor in the Series B Round, which had its initial funding in June 2021. Black Oak Capital has elected two of the four current directors and has
the right to elect the 5% director. Under the initial senior credit agreement with Black Oak Capatal, the principal was due three vears from the date of
issuance on June 29, 2019, The lender had offered the Company up to 33,150,000, which accrues interest at a rate equal to 12.50% per annum,
which is payable monthly. In July 2017, the Company amended and restated the agreement to borrow up to an additional amount of 51,000,000,
raising the maximum available to be borrowed to 54,150,000, In March 2018, the amounts borrowable under the senior credit agreement were
increased by an additional $500,000. In February 2019, the lender agreed to an additional $1,725,000 to provide working capital to maintain and
expand the operations. In March 2019, the lender distributed 51,100,000 of the expected $1,725,000, On August 1, 2019, the Company issued
500,000 of additional promissory notes to Black Oak Capital as part of a reduction of its senior note from 55,375,000 to 55,000,000 and an
additional funding of $125,000. On December 31, 2019, the Company amended the senior credit agreement to extend the maturity date to January
31, 2020, a replacement from its original maturity date of December 31, 2019,

In the first gquarter of 2020, the Company issued $3500,000 of additional promissory notes to Black Oak Capital with an initial maturity date of
December 31, 2020, The Company pays interest on these additional promissory notes on 4 monthly basis at a rate of 12.5% per annum. As part of
this transaction, Black Oak Capital (1) extended the maturity date of $5.000,000 of senior notes to April 1, 2021 and (2) added an extension fee of
$250,000 for the senior secured notes and 525,000 for the promissory note to be paid on the Note Maturity Date or earlier repayment of the Loans,
which 15 recorded as a loan premium to the debt. The loan premium is amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the Loans. For the
vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company amortized 550,000 and $200,000 for the senior secured notes and $0 and 525,000 for the
Promissory nole W inlerest expense.

In December 2020, the Company amended the senior credit agreement to borrow an additional $230,000 and extended the $500,000 promissory
note maturity date to Apnl 1, 2021, ongmmally December 31, 2020. The matunty date of the additional $250,000 occurs upon a Change of Control of
the Borrower. The $250,000 note is comprised of 180,500 in new funds, 857,000 in otherwise due to lender in the form of interest payments under
the credit agreement “September 2020 Interest Payment”, and a closing fee of $12,500. The new note accrues interest at the maximum rate
permitted by law and an amount calculated as follows: (A) if all amounts due are satisfied on or before November 15, 2021, the interest rate would
be equal to 200% of principal amount; (B) if any amount due remains outstanding after November 15, 2021, the interest would be equal to 250%,
with such amount increasing 50% 1f the aggregate principal amount for each six calendar month peniod following June 15, 2021 up (o a maximum
of 4iN%. Interest under this new note is paid solely upon a Change of Control of Borrower. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had
outstanding accrued interest of 281,250 and $31,250, respectively, related to this note, which was recorded to interest expense. With the exception
of debt described in the preceding sentence, the Company pays the interest on a monthly basis related to all other debt under this senior credit
agreement.

In March 2021, the Company amended 1ts senior credit agreement to borrow from Black Oak Capital an additional $250,000. The Company pays
interest on a monthly basis at a rate of 12.5%, per annum. In November 2021, Black Oak Capital advanced 3250000 to the Company, which has
been classified as other current liabilities,

The agreement contains certain affirmative covenants related to the timely delivery of financial information to the lender, as well as certain
customary negative covenants, The agreement also includes a financial covenant related to the Company’s ligquidity and requires a minimum cash
balance of 5250000 to be maintained. As of December 31, 2020, the Company was in compliance with all financial and non-financial covenants.
As of December 31, 2021, the Company was NOT in compliance with the financial and non-financial covenants. These compliance failures were
rectified by the debt conversion agreement described below.

The semor credit agreement was secured by substantially all the Company's assets and shareholder shares in which have been pledged as additional
collateral,
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As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company had outstanding borrowings of 36,000,000 and 55,750,000, respectively, under its
senior credit agreement. On April 1, 2022, Black Oak Capital elected to convert all of the debt ($6,000,000) into Series B-2b Preferred Stock. Thus,
the Company reflected the senior credit agreement as a long-term liability as of December 31, 2021, See Note |8 for additional information on
Conversion.

Fees and Senies A-2 Preferred Stock warrants issued in connection with the senior credit agreement resulted in a discount and loan premium to the
senior credit agreement. For the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recorded debt discounts of approximately 512,500 and
B3T. 500 and loan premiums of 350,000 and 5225000, respectively, related to costs for obtaiming the semior credit agreement. As of December 31,
2021 and 2020, discounts and loan premiums of approximately $73,000 and 8252000, respectively, had been amortized to interest expense in
conjunction with this agreement, The Company is recording the debt amortization using the straight-line method due to the relatively short term of
the semior credit agreement. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, a debt discount 30 and 310,417 remained, respectively.

Note 6 — Loans Pavable

In ODctober 2019, the Company entered a PayPal Working Capital business loan offered by WebBank for S200,000. The Company paid a one-time
fixed loan fee of 55,923, which was recorded as interest expense. There were no other fees or interest associated with this loan, Repayments of 10%
of the Company’s sales proceed transacted via PayPal were deducted daily from the Company’s PayPal merchant account. A minimum payment of
£20,592 was required every 90 days. In July 2020, the loan was paid in full, In the same month, the Company entered a new loan with PayPal
Working Capital for 75,000 with similar payvment terms and paid a one-time fixed loan fee of 3960, which was recorded as interest expense. In
November 2020, the loan was paid in full, and the Company entered another loan with PayPal Working Capital for $150,000 with similar payment
terms and paid a one-time fixed loan fee of 4,212, which was recorded as interest expense. In April 2021, the loan was paid in full. In the same
month, the Company entered a new loan with PayPal Working Capital for $150,000 with similar payment terms and paid a one-time fixed loan fee
of $8,790, which was recorded as interest expense. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, a loan balance remained of $95.323 and £106,550,
respectively,

In January 2021, the Company entered a Stripe Capital Program loan offered by Celtic Bank for 336,000, The Company paid a one-time fixed loan
fee of 56,048, which was recorded as interest expense. There were no other fees or interest associated with thas loan, Repayments of 19.80% of the
Company's sales proceed transacted via Stripe were deducted daily from the Company’s Stripe merchant account. A minimum payment of $4.672
was required every 60 days. In September 2021, the loan was paid in full. In November 2021, the Company entered a new loan with Stripe Capital

Program for 566,300 with similar payvment terms and paid a one-time fixed loan fee of 510,475, which was recorded as interest expense., As of
December 31, 2021, a loan balance of $29,014 remained.

The Company applied for assistance via three programs being offered by the Small Business Administration (“SBA") in response to the COVID-19
crisis: The Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) Loan; the Economic Injury Disaster Loan (“EIDL"™) and Economic Injury Disaster Loan
Emergency Advance, On Apnl 14, 2020, the Company received 510,000 for the Economic Injury Disaster Loan Emergency Advance, In the second
quarter of 2020, the Company was approved and received funds for the PPP and the EIDL loan. The PPP loan funded 5492555 through Radius
Bank with a 1% fixed interest rate and a mature date of two years of first disbursement of this loan. No payments were due on this loan for six
months from the date of disbursement. Interest continued to accrue during the deferment peniod. The Company was ¢ligible to apply for loan
forgiveness 8 weeks after the first disbursement. The amount of forgiveness was calculated in accordance with the requirements of the PPP,
including the provisions of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act™). Not more than 25% of the amount forgiven
could be attributable to non-payroll costs. The Company applied for forgiveness of the PPP loan in the third quarter of 2020, On November 2, 2020,
the Company received forgiveness of the PPP loan of $482 555 in principal and $2 420 in accrued interest, with the SBA deducting 510,000 for the
EIDL loan emergency advance, leaving a principal balance of 510,000 on the loan. Monthly payments of $593 for the remaiming balance of 510,000
and accrued interest started in December 2020 and go through the maturity date of May 1, 2022, As of December 2021 and 2020, a loan balance of
50 and 59,460 remained. In February 2021, the loan balance was forgiven, and all payments and interest were returned to the Company, On June 4,
2020, the EIDL loan funded % 150,000 with a 3.75% per annum interest rate, Monthly installment payvments, including principal and interest, of $731
will begin thirty months from the date of the note. The balance of principal and interest will be due thirty vears from the date of the note. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had outstanding accrued interest for the EIDL loan of 38,861 and $3,236, respectively, which was
recorded as interest expense,
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Note 7 — Promissory Notes Payable

On June 27, 2018, the Company received 3200,000 under a promissory note (the *Second June 2018 Promissory Note™) agreement, with a maturity
date of June 26, 2020. The proceeds were used for operations. Interest accrued on the loan amount at a monthly rate of 1.5%, paid monthly. For the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, accrued interest was 50 and 53,000, respectively. The Company paid fees of 510,000, which were
recorded as a discount to the Promissory Note and fully amortized as of December 31, 2019, In 2019, the Company offered its debt holders the
opportunity to convert their existing debt (principal only) at an PO of the Company and listing on a major exchange at a 20% discount to the 1PO
share price, This debt holder elected o convert existing debt (principal only) and debt had been reclassed to Convertible loan payable on the balance
sheet. This is an extinguishment of existing debt and a beneficial conversion would have been recorded upon an IPO, as it was contingent before
conversion feature, In June 2020, the note maturity date was extended to June 26, 2021, In September 2021, the note holder elected to convert all
amounts due, principal and interest, into Series B-2a Preferred Stock, See Note 10 for additional information on conversion.

Note § — Bonds Payable

On May 18, 201%, the Company commenced an offering under Regulation A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, of 3,000 Class A Bonds.
The price per bond was 51,000 with a minmmum investment of 55,000, The target offening was up to 35,000,000, The Class A Bond offering was
closed on December 31, 2018 and the Company received proceeds of $821,000. In the first quarter of 2019, the Company received the remaining
proceeds of $125,000. As of December 31, 2019, total Class A Bonds issued was $946 000, which amounts were used for operations. The Class A
Bonds bear interest at 1% per month, or 12% per year, paid monthly. In connection with the Class A Bond offering, the Company paid fees of
567,845, which was recorded as a discount to the bonds. The discount was amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the bonds (36
months), due to the short-term nature of the bonds, For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company amortized $3,251 and 5,938,
respectively to interest expense. For the yvears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, a discount of 50 and $3,251 remained, respectively.

In June 2019, the Company offered 115 Class A Bond debt holders the opportunity to convert their existing debt (principal only) at an 1PO ol the
Company and listing on a major exchange at a 20% discount to the PO share price. As of December 31, 2019, Class A Bond debt holders electing
to convert represented $684,000 of debt and has been reclassed to Convertible bonds on the balance sheet. This is an extinguishment of existing
bonds and a beneficial conversion will be recorded upon an 1PO, as it 15 contingent before conversion feature,

In June 2021, the Company asked bondholders to vote for an extension on their bonds, In August 2021, the bondholder vote passed with more than
51% consent, resulting in the onginal maturity date of cach Class A Bond being extended by three years.

As of December 31, 2021, the following is a schedule of principal amount maturities for all loans, convertible loans, promissory notes, bonds and
convertible bonds payable:

Year Ending December 31, Third Party Related Party
2022 b 124,337 § 6,000, 000
2023 - -
2024 B2 (W) -
2025 125,000 -
2026
Thereafter 150,000 -
b 1,220,337 § 6,000, 000
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Note 9 — Preferred Stock Warrant Liability

During 2021 and 2020, there were no 1ssuance of Senes A-2 Prefermed Stock warrants in conjunction with a debt or purchase agreement. As of
December 31, 2020, the Series A-2 Preferred Stock was contingently redeemable and, accordingly, the related warrants had been presented as a
lability in accordance with ASC 480, The Warrants that were treated as a hability were measured 1o estimated fair value at each reporting period
through June 2021, In June 2021, the warrants were revalued one last time and then reclassed to additional paid-in capital as the redemption feature
was eliminated when the new Certificate of Incorporation was filed. The warrants have an exercise price of $0.01 and 51.75 per share and expire ten
years afler issuance.

Management determined that the fair market value of the Series A-2 Preferred Stock warrants granted as of December 31, 2020 was 52,060,000,
which had been recorded as a liability, See Note 12 for additional information related to the valuation.

Note 10 — Preferred Stock

On June 14, 2021, the Company filed a Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation with the State of Delaware to authorize, sell and
155ue a new series of Preferred Stock B, and convert the old series of Preferred Stock A, A-1, A-2 and AA to the new senes of Preferred Stock B,
Immediately prior to the effective date of the Certificate, the total number of shares the Company was authorized to sell was 88,682,500, The
number of shares of Common Stock (“Old Common Stock™) authorized was 36,000,000, The number of shares of Preferred Stock (“Old Preferred
Stock™) authorized was 52,682,500 consisting of 1,712,200 for Series A, 5,970,300 for Sernes A-1, 10,000,000 for Series A-2, and 35,000,000 for
Series AA. The Old Preferred Stock contained a redemption right, which no longer exist with the conversion to the new Series B Preferred Stock.
The Company is now authorized to issue two classes of Stock, Commaon Stock and Preferred Stock, for total shares of 288,000,000, The number of
Common Stock authorized 1s 155,000,000 shares, The number of Preferred Stock authorized 1s 133,000,000 shares, which shall be divided into 1)
50,000,000 shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock. 2) 7,000,000 shares of Series B-2a Preferred Stock, 3) 22,000,000 shares of Series B-2b Preferred
Stock, 4) 19,000,000 shares of Series B-3 Preferred Stock, 5) 16,000,000 shares of Series B-4 Preferred Stock, and 6) 19,000,000 shares of Seres
B-5 Preferred Stock, collectively known as “Series B Preferred Stock™ or “Preferred Stock.™ Each share of Common Stock issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the effective date of this amendment was automatically reclassified to a unit consisting of one share of Common Stock and one
share of Senes B-5 Preferred stock (“Common Stock Umit™), Any options and warrants or other rights to purchase Old Common Stock became an
option, warrant, or right, or security convertible into, an equivalent number of Common Stock Units. After the effective date of this amendment, any
new Common Stock will be issued as a unit consisting of one share of Common Stock and one share of Series B-5 Preferred Stock. All warranis
exercisable for Series A-2 Preferred Stock became exercisable for an equivalent number of shares of B-4 Preferred Stock.

In June 2021, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement that authorized and resulted in the sale and 1ssuance of 9.825,113 shares of
Series B-1 Preferred Stock at a purchase price of $0.10178 per share.

In July and August 2021, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement that authorized and resulted in the sale and 1ssuance of 19,650,226
shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock at a purchase price of 30.10178 per share.

Conversion rights: Shares of Senies B-5 Preferred Stock are not convertible, The holders of the Series B Preferred Stock (excluding Series B-5
Preferred Stock) shall have the rights with respect to the conversion of their respective Series B Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock.
Series B Preferred Stock conversion rate shall be obtained by dividing the respective original issue price for the Series B Preferred Stock, The
conversion price for Series B-1, Senies B2a, Series B-2b, B-3 and B-4 Preferred Stock shall inmitially be the onginal issue price of the Senies B
Preferred Stock issue price. Such initial Preferred Stock conversion price shall be adjusted from time to time.
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Liguidation rights: Lipon a hquidating event, belore any distnibution or payment shall be made to the holders of any common stock, the holder of
Series B Preferred Stock shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Company legally available for distribution, or the consideration received
in such transaction, respectively. First an amount per share of Series B-1 Preferred Stock and Series B-2a Preferred Stock equal to three times the
original 1ssue price (as adjusted for any stock dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations and the ke wiath respect to such shares after the
filing date hereof) for each shares held by them on a pro rata basis. If, upon any such liguidation, dissolution. or winding up. the assets of the
Company shall be insufficient to make payment in full to all holders of the Series B-1Preferred Stock and Series B-2a Preferred Stock, of the
liguidation preferences set forth, then such assets (or consideration) shall be distibuted among the holders of Series B-1 Prefermed Stock and Series
B-2a Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, ratably in proportion to the full amounts to which they would otherwise be respectively entitled to.
Then second, an amount per share of Senes B-2b Preferred Stock equal to one times the onginal 1ssue price (as adjusted lor any stock dividends,
combinations, splits, recapitalizations and the like with respect to such shares after the filing date hereof) for cach share of Senes B-2b Preferred
Stock held by them. If, upon liquidation, dissolution, or winding up, the assets of the Company shall be insufficient to make payment in full to all
holders of Series B-2b, then such assets (or consideration) shall be distributed among the holders of Series B-2b at the time outstanding, ratably in
proportion to the full amounts to which they would otherwise be respectively enfitled to. Then third, an amount per share of Series B-3 Preferred
Stock equal to one times the original issue price (as adjusted for any stock dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations and the like with respect
to such shares after the filing date hereof) for each share of Series B-3 Preferred Stock held by them. If, upon liguidation, dissolution, or winding up,
the assets of the Company shall be insufticient to make payment in full to all holders of Series B-3, then such assets {or consideration) shall be
distributed among the holders of Series B-3 at the time outstanding, ratably in proportion to the full amounts to which they would otherwise be
respectively entitled to. Then forth, an amount per share of Serics B-4 Preferred Stock equal to one times the original issue price (as adjusted for any
stock dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations and the like with respect to such shares after the filing date hereof) for each share of Series
B-4 Preferred Stock held by them. If, upon hguidation, dissolution, or winding up, the assets of the Company shall be insufficient 1o make payment
in full to all holders of Series B-4, then such assets (or consideration) shall be distributed among the holders of Series B-4 at the ime outstanding,
ratably in proportion to the full amounts to which they would otherwise be respectively entitled to. Then fifth, an amount per share of Series B-2b
Preferred Stock equal to one times the original ssue price (as adjusted for any stock dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations and the hike
with respect to such shares after the filing date hereof) for each share of Series B-2b Preferred Stock held by them. If, upon liquidation, dissolution,
or winding up, the assets of the Company shall be insufficient to make payment in full to all holders of Series B-2b, then such assets (or
consideration) shall be distributed among the holders of Series B-2b at the time outstanding, ratably in proportion to the full amounts to which they
would otherwise be respectively entitled to. Then sixth, an amount per share of Series B-3 Preferred Stock equal to one times the original issue price
ias adjusted for any stock dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations and the hke with respect o such shares alter the hiling date hereol) Tor
cach share of Series B-3 Preferred Stock held by them. If, upon liguidation, dissolution, or winding up, the assets of the Company shall be
insufficient to make payment in full to all holders of Series B-3, then such assets (or consideration) shall be distributed among the holders of Series
B-3 at the time outstanding, ratably in proportion to the full amounts to which they would otherwise be respectively entitled to, Then seventh, an
amount per share of Series B-4 Preferred Stock egual to one times the original issue price (as adjusted for any stock dividends, combinations, splits,
recapitalizations and the like with respect to such shares afier the filing date hereof) for each share of Series B-4 Preferred Stock held by them. If,
upon higquidation, dissolution, or winding up. the assets of the Company shall be insufficient to make payment in full to all holders of Senes B-4,
then such assets (or consideration) shall be distributed among the holders of Series B-4 at the time outstanding, ratably in proportion to the full
amounts to which they would otherwise be respectively entitled to, Then eighth, an amount per share of Series B-3 Preferred Stock equal to 50.50
for each share held by them. If, upon any liguidation, dissolution, or winding up, the assets of the Company shall be insufficient to make payment in
full to all holders of Series B-5 Preferred Stock, then such assets (or consideration) shall be distributed among the holders of Series B-5 Preferred
Stock at the time outstanding, ratably in proportion to the full amounts to which they would otherwise be respectively entitled to,

After the payment of full liquidation preferences of the Series B Preferred Stock, the remaining assets of the Company legally available for
distribution ratably to the holders of the Common Stock and Series B Preferred stockholders (excluding Series B-5 Preferred Stock) on an as-if
converted basis in proportion to the number of shares of Commeon Stock held by each such holder.

Voting rights: The holders of Preferred Stock (excluding all shares of Series B-5 Preferred Stock) shall be entitled to the number of votes equal to
the whole number of shares of Common Stock into which such shares of Preferred Stock could be converted with the same voting rights and powers
of common shareholders, except with respect 1o the election of directors, The Sernes B-5 Preferred Stock nsell shall carmy no voting rights, but the
Common Stock, after the effective date of the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, shall maintain its voting rights of one
vote per share. In addition to any greater or additional vote required by law of the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the
affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding Preferred Stock (excluding all shares of Senes B-5 Preferred Stock), voting
together on an as-converted basis, shall be necessary for effecting or validating actions {whether by amendment, merger or consolidation, or by any
wholly-owned subsidiaries or otherwise).
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Detail information in supporit of Statement of Stockholders ' Deficit
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Naote 11 — Common Stock

In the first and second quarter of 2020, the Company sold 62,764 shares of Class A common stock, including 21,372 shares i1ssued to StartEngine
for 2% of amount raised in equity for compensation of services provided, for net proceeds of 513,924, A deposit hold of 52,082 was reclassed to
subscription receivable. The Company paid escrow fees of 54,411 for the offering. On July 28, 2020, the remaining deposit hold of $18,568 was
released.

On January 6, 2020, the Company filed an Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation with the State of Delaware to consolidate the
outstanding Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock inte a single class of Common Stock (Class A) with the same voting rights as the
existing Class A Common Stock. The number of shares of common stock authonized to be 1ssued is 36,000,000 sharcs.

On March 31, 2020, the Company commenced an offering pursuant to Regulation A under the Securnities Act (the “Offering™), pursuant to which it
offered to sell up to 12,000,000 shares of its Common Stock, at a price of $1.00 per share. The Company utilized the net proceeds from the Offering
for inventory, purchase order deposits for inventory, tooling and other upfront costs associated with inventory production and general working
capital, For the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company sold shares of 380,647 and 951,665, respectively for net proceeds of
£31%5,383 and 3740876, respectively from the Offering. As of December 31, 2020, a deposit hold of 552,930 was reclassed to subscription
receivable, which was fully released in 2021, The Company paid fees to StartEngine of $15,000 for services provided prior to commencing. Other
fees include a 7% commission fee based on dollar amount received from mvestors and 5% commission paid in warrants for shares with the same
terms as the Offering. As of December 31, 2021, the Company is obligated to issue 66,616 in warrants to StartEngine in connection with the
Offering.

In May 2021, an employee exercised their options and purchased 11,900 shares of commaon stock for net proceeds of $208.
On June 14, 2021, the Company filed a Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation with the State of Delaware to among other
things, authorize each share of Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective date of the amendment to be automatically

reclassified as to one share of Common Stock and one share of Series B-5 Preferred Stock ("Common Stock Unit™). See Note 10 for additional
details on the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
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Note 12 — Stock Warrants

At various times during 2017, the Company issued 216,779 Series A-2 Preferred Stock warrants in connection with the loan payable (See Note 5).
The warrants have an exercise price of $0.0143 per share and expire ten years after 1ssuance,

At various times during 2018, the Company issued 263,298 Series A-2 Preferred Stock warrants in conjunction with the loan payable {See Note 5)
and Series A-2 preferred stock purchase agreements. The warrants have an exercise price of $0.0143 and 51.75 per share, respectively, and expire
ten years after 1ssuance.

In the first quarter of 2019, the Company issued 360,170 Serics A-2 Preferred Stock warrants in conjunction with the loan payable (Sec Note 5).
The warrants have an exercise price of $0.0143 and expire in ten years after issuance.

In December 2020, the Company issued 250,000 common stock warrants to Robert Orlando in conjunction with the settlement of the Hybnd
Athletics case (See Note 17).

The Company estimates the fair value of warrants using the Black-Scholes pricing model and recognizes warrant forfeitures as they occur, as there
is insufficient historical data to estimate. The risk-free rate assumption for warrants granted is based upon observed interest rates on the United
States government securities appropriate for the expected term of the Company s warrants, The expected term is calculated using the simphified
method which takes into consideration the contractual life and vesting terms of the warrants. The simplified method was used by the Company due
1o mnsullicient lastorical data, Volatility 18 based on historical volatility of comparable public companies, The dividend yield assumption 15 based on
the Company’s history and expectation of dividend payouts. The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its preferred or
common stock, and the Company did not anticipate paying any cash dividends.

The Company calculated the estimated fair value of each Series A-2 Preferred Stock and common stock warrants on the date of grant and at
December 31, 2021 and 2020 using the following assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Weighted average variables in accordance with the Series A-2 Preferred Stock warrants:

2021 2020
Expected life of preferred stock warrants 2.00 2.00
Expected stock price volatihity 36.0%: 33.0%%
Annual rate of quarterly dividends 0.00% 0.00%
Rizk free rate 0,25%, 0.13%
Weighted average varables in accordance with the common stock warrants:
2020
Expected life of common stock warrants 10,00
Expected stock price volatility 33.00%
Annual rate of quarterly dividends 0.0
Rizsk free rate 0.37%
There were no common steck warrants granted for the vear ended December 31, 202 1.
The following table summarizes warrant activily:
Number of Weighted Avg Weighted Avg
Warranis Exercise Price Remaining Years
Outstanding as of December 31, 2020 3,546,547 0.07 B.43
Forfeited - -
Granted - .
Outstanding as of December 31, 2021 3,546,547 % 0.07 7.43
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Note 13- 5tock Option Plan

The Company’s 20135 Equity Incentive Plan {the “Incentive Plan™) permits the grant of incentive and nongualified stock options for up to 2,746,500
shares of common stock, In July 2020, the Incentive Plan was amended and restated to account for the increase of share it avairlable by 1,000,000
shares, change the Plan’s govemning law from California to Delaware, extend the term of the Plan. and make other necessary technical changes. As
of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were 1,226,911 and 680,317 shares, respectively, available for issuance under the Plan. Key employees,
defined as employees, directors, non-emplovee directors and consultants, are eligible to be granted awards under the Plan. The Company believes
that such awards promote the long-term success of the Company.

During 2021 and 2020, the Company 1ssued 75,000 and 877,000, respectively, stock options to the board of directors, employecs and consultants,
which have various vesting terms.

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recognized 398,211 and 3170897, respectively, of stock compensation expenses
related to stock options. The total stock-based compensation was recognized in sales and marketing expenses in the amount of 527 801 and 54,595,

respectively, and general and administrative expenses in the amount of 370,410 and $116.302, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and recognizes stock option forfeitures as they
occur, as there is insufficient historical data to estimate. The risk-free rate assumption for options granted is based upon observed interest rates on
the United States govermment secunities appropriate for the expected term of the Company’s stock options. The expected term s calculated using the
simplified method which takes into consideration the contractual life and vesting terms of the options. The simplified method was used by the
Company due to insufficient historical data. Volatility is based on historical volatility of comparable public companies. The dividend vield
assumption 15 based on the Company s history and expectation of dividend payouts. The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on
its common stock, and the Company does not anticipate paying any cash dividends on its common stock in the foreseeable future.

The Company calculated the estimated fair value of cach stock option on the date of grant using the following weighted average assumptions for the
years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Expected life of options 4.50 6.50
Expected stock price volatihity 36.00% 33.00M%
Annual rate of quarterly dividends 0.00% 0.00%
Risk free rate 0. 74% 0.45%,

The Company estimated the fair value of the options using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Expected lives were determined using the
simplified method, except non-employee options.

The following table summarized option activity:

Weighted Avg Weighted Avg
Number of Options Exercise Price Remaining Years
Ouistanding as of December 31, 2020 2. 187,683 0.67 9.89
Forfeited (793,094) 0.13
Exercised (11,9000 0.02
Granted 75,000 .60
Outstanding as of December 31, 2021 1.457.689 0.69 7.21
Outstanding as of December 31, 2021, vested 1,173479 & 0.72 6.89
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Note 14 — Retirement Plan

The Company has a 401(k) Plan (the “Plan™) covering employees who meet eligibility requirements. Employees are eligible to contribute any
amount of their earnings, up to the annual federal maximum allowed by law, The emplover contributions to the 401(k) plan are determined on a
yearly basis at the discretion of Management. The Company contributed approximately 350,000 and 3104000 to the Plan during the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively,

Note 15 — Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended December 31, 2021, purchases from three supplicrs represented approximately 89% of tofal inventory purchases. As of
December 31, 2021, £1,213,281 or 39% of accounts payable was due to these suppliers. For the year ended December 31, 2020, purchases from
three suppliers represented approximately 95% of total inventory purchases. As of December 31, 2020, approximately 5629411 or 25% of accounts
payable was due to these suppliers. Loss of these vendors would cause an adverse impact.

The Company 1% not subject to customer concentration as a majority of its revenue 15 derived from website sales (direct-to-consumer).
MNote 16 — Income Taxes

The Company's current tax liability consists of minimum amounts pavable of $800 to the state of California and are included within general and
adminmistrative expense on the statements ol operations,

The Company’s net deferred tax assets at December 31, 2021 and 2020 is approximately 38,168,000 and $6,973,000, respectively, which primarily
consists of net operating loss carry forwards and various accruals, As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company provided a 100% valuation
allowance against the net deferred tax assets, which management could not determine, would more likely than not be realized. During the vears
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s valuation allowance increased by approximately $1,195,000 and 51,050,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2021, the Company had federal net operating loss carry forwards of approximately 326,391,000 and state net operating loss carry
lorwards of 326,214,000, The federal and Califorma net operating losses expire on varous dates through 2036, Net operating loss carry forwards
generated during 2018 and after don™t expire,

The difference between the effectivie tax rate and the stated tax rate 15 primarily due to a full valuation allowance on the net deferred tax assets,

Federal income tax laws limit a company’s ability to utilize certain net operating loss carry forwards in the event of a cumulative change in
ownership in excess of 50%, as defined under Internal Revenue Code Section 382, The Company has completed numerous financing transactions
that have resulted in changes in the Company’s ownership structure. The utilization of net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards may be
limited due to these ownership changes.

The Company is subject to tax in the United States (*U.5.") and files tax returns in the U.S. Federal jurisdiction and California and Texas state
Jurisdiction. The Company 15 subject o US, Federal, state and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for all periods starting in
2016. The Company currently is not under examination by any tax authorities.

Note 17 — Commitments and Contingencies

Operating leases — Under the terms of its most recent lease, the Company leased its office facility for a monthly rent of approximately $2,200,
Total rent expense for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was approximately 553,000 and $130,000, respectively. On March 10, 2020,
the lease was renewed through March 31, 2021. On March 31, 2021, the Company let the lease expire on the bulk of its office space and signed a
lease for a subset of the space at a cost of 52,246 with an expiration date of March 31, 2022, In March 2022, the Company let this lease expire and
signed a temporary lease for shared office space at a cost of $5,745 per month with an expiration date of May 31, 2022, The Company has the
option to extend this lease on a month-to-month basis after the expiration date.
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Capital leases — In April and August 2015, the Company entered into two leases for vehicles, both of which have been paid in full. The leases were
considered to be capital leases, thus $78,156 representing the cost of vehicles, was recorded as an asset. In August 2020, one of the vehicles with a
carrying value of $0 was sold for $20,000. The second vehicle is still owned by the Company.,

Warranty - Our product warranties are expensed as incurred. Due to their immateriality, we do not maintain a warranty reserve. We continue to
monitor our warranty cost and their impact on our business,

Deferred Compensation — On July 23, 2016, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Ronald Wilson, the CED at that time, that
entitled him to a deferred compensation in the amount of 25% of his annual base salary, The deferred compensation was to be deferred until such
time as Mr. Wilson is no longer emploved by the Company or payment 1s agreed upon by the board of directors. On Apnl 23, 2020, the CEQ
separated from the Company. A separation agreement was reached in June 2020 with the following terms: (1) total gross amount of $30,000 paid
within one business day after Mr, Wilson executed the agreement; (2) total gross amount of 550,000 paid within seven business days of effective
date; (3) $100,000 shall be deemed paid in form of 200,000 shares of Series AA Preferred Stock at $0.50 per share; (4) total gross amount of
200,000 paid in twelve cash payments of $16,666.67 on a monthly basis. In June 2020, the Company had accrued habilities of $400,000 of
deferred compensation per Mr. Wilson™s agreement, As of December 31, 2020, $200,000 was paid in cash and $ 100,000 paid in the form of 200,000
shares of Series AA Preferred Stock to Mr. Wilson as part of the agreement, leaving S100,000 remaining in accrued deferred compensation.
Deferred compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was 50 and $233,048, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, all
deferred compensation was paid in full.

Contingencies — As a manulacturer ol consumer products, the Company has exposure o Cahiformia Proposition 65, which regulates substances
officially listed by Califormia as causing cancer, birth defects, or other reproductive harm. The regulatory arm of Proposition 65 that relates to the
Company prohibits businesses from knowingly exposing individuals to listed substances without providing a clear and reasonable warning. All
Companies in California are subject to potential claims based on the content of their products sold. The Company 15 not currently subject to
litigation matters related to the proposition. While there 1s currently not an accrual recorded for this potential contingency, in the opinion of
management, the amount of ultimate loss with respect to these actions will not materially affect the financial position or results of operations of the
Company.

The apparel mdustry 15 subject o laws and regulations of federal, state and local governments. Management beheves that the Company 15 1n
compliance with these laws. While no regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future
review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or asserted at this time.

From time to time, the Company is involved in a variety of legal matters that arise in the normal course of business. Based on information available,
the Company evaluates the likelihood of potential outcomes, The Company records the appropriate liability when the amount is deemed probable
and reasonably estimable, Mo allowance for loss or settlement has been recorded at December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Hyhbrid Athletics, LLC (“HA™), filed a civil action in the 1.8, District Court for the District of Connecticut on October 23, 2017, seeking damages
and alleging, among other claims, federal and common law trademark infringement, false designation of orngin and unfair competition, unfair
competition under the Connecticut Unfair Trade Practices Act, and unjust enrichment.

On December 11, 2020, the Company reached a settlement agreement with HA and Rob Orlando for (1) a one-time payment of 31,000,000 paid to
HA within five business days of the execution of the setilement agreement, paid by Farmers Insurance, {2) a total sum of $100,000 paid in four
annual installments of 525,000 ¢ach to Rob Orlando on November 1, 2021, November 1, 2022, November 1. 2023, and November 1, 2024, and (3) a
stock purchase warrant in the form of 930,000 shares of Class A Commaon Stock at a purchase price of $0LIN1 per share paid to Rob Orlando. The
parties have dismissed the claims and counterclaims.
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Al the tme of our alleged advertising injury 10 HA, we had a policy with Farmers Insurance that we believe covered us for up 1o 52 million in legal
reimbursements. We tendered the ULS. District Court claims to our carrier within days of the case’s commencement. Although the carrier indicated
an initial willingness to setile, we were not able to come to a negotiated resolution that we deemed fair. As a result, we filed a complaint on May 16,
20019, in the San Diego County Dhstrict Court against the insurance carmer, seeking a declaratory judgment regarding the carmier’s duty to defend, as
well as claims for breach of contract, specific performance and bad faith. On March 10, 2020, the Superior Court of California, County of San Diego
granted the Company’s motion for summary adjudication against Farmers Insurance, Farmers Insurance then filed a petition for peremptory or
alternative writ of mandate and a request for immediate stay. This request was rcad and considered by the Court of Appeal and the petition and
request were denied on April 16, 2020, In June 2020, we have received reimbursement of legal fees of 8574,419 from Farmers. We believe that we
had proper coverage under our policy with the carmer and that they are Inancially responsible for the remander of our defense costs in the U5
District Court case. In November 2020, the Company reached a scttlement agreement with Farmers for full release and satisfaction of all claims.
Theretore, Farmers agreed to (1) pay 31,000,000 to HA, and (2) $875, 000 paid jointly to Procopio and HY LETE, both made and delivered within
fifteen davs of the execution of this release,

The Company entered into an engagement letter calling for the execution of an underwriting agreement for an anticipated PO, The Company
agreed to grant the underwriters an option, exercisable within 45 days after the closing of the anticipated offering, to acquire up to an additional 15%
of the total number of shares to be offered in the anticipated offering on the same terms as the other shares publicly oftered. The shares were to be
purchased at a discount of 7% of the public offering price. In addition, the Company agreed to reimburse the underwriters for accountable expenses
incurred in connection with this transaction. As of December 31, 2019, the Company paid $57,755 and accrued an additional $50,000, all of which
has been recorded as an expense to Withdrawal of IPO. The Company also agreed to reimburse the underwriters for legal fees of $125,000, which
has been accrued by the Company and recorded as an expense to Withdrawal of TPO, In September 2020, the Company learned that the fees owed
were only 360,000, thus 865,000 was credited to Withdrawal of IPO for legal fees accrued.

Note 18 — Subsequent Events
Pending Litigation

On February 23, 2022, the Company received a copy of a civil complaint filed in California State Court by the Company's former CEO, Ronald L.
Wilson, IT (the “Complaint™), and naming as defendants, the Company, several of its current, and former, Board Members, one of its oflicers, and
the Company's principal investor, Black Oak Capital (*Black Oak™). Within the Complaint, Mr. Wilson alleges, among other things, varous causes
of action related to an alleged agreement between the Company and Mr. Wilson, and the Company’s most recent round of financing involving Black
Oak, Specifically, the Complaint raises the following causes of action against one or more of the defendants: breach of contract; fraudulent
inducement, intentional interference with employment contract, defamation, promissory estoppel, and failure to pay wages owed.

The Company and Black Oak believe the claims made by Mr, Wilsen are without ment and they intend to defend themselves vigorously against
such claims listed in the Complaint. While the Company and Black Oak believe they will be successful in defending against Mr. Wilson's claims,
there can be no assurance as to the outcome of this lawsuit,

Crossroads Financing ABL

In January 2022, the Company entered into a loan and security agreement with Crossroads Financing, LLC (“Crossroads™) to borrow up to
£1,700,000 based on a borrowing base of up to 73% of inventory cost or up to 85% of net orderly liquidation value with an initial term of two years
from the date hereof, Interest rate per annum rate equal to the greater of three-month LIBOR rate plus 16% or 16%. Along with this transaction, the
Company signed a three-party intercreditor and subordination agreement with Black Oak Fund4, LLC and Crossroads. The Company has borrowed
$1,562,956 to date.
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Stripe Capital Program Loan

Subsequent to December 3